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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration.

The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors. Given the emerging nature of companies
listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Glory Flame Holdings (the “Company”), | am honoured to
present this annual report of the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (“FY2018” or the
“Reporting Period”).

PERFORMANCE

The Group posted a revenue of HK$133.6 million for FY2018,
representing a decrease of 27.1% as compared to HK$183.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”). For
FY2018, the Group’s revenue was primarily generated from the
construction business and trading business for clean coal. The
revenue slippage was primarily due to a decrease in revenue from
trading business. | expect that the revenue from trading business
will continue to shrink as the Group is concerned about the
worsening credit quality of its customers.

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$199.6 million for FY2018,
as compared to a net profit of HK$15.8 million for FY2017.
During the year, the Group incurred a significant loss, primarily
due to certain one-off items, such as (i) a loss of HK$35.7 million
from sales of investment in securities listed in Hong Kong; (ii)
an impairment loss of HK$46.7 million on trade receivables,
primarily Attributable to the customers of the trading business;
(i) an impairment loss of HK$47.8 million in association with
discontinuing the business plan for the ecological LED cultivation
cabinet system.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During 2018, the Group continued to focus on the construction
business. Hong Kong is a densely-populated city with a well-
developed construction industry. The growing size and complexity
of construction projects are commonly awarded to a small
number of large construction companies or contractors which
possess sophisticated technology and strong financial backing.
Most of small construction companies only act as subcontractors
for a small part of the building projects. In this context, the
Group’s growth in the construction business in Hong Kong would
be steady but in a slow pace. Thus, the Group now strives to
drive its growth by tapping into the emerging markets, particularly
in China. In view of the rapid urbanization in China and that Belt
and Road Initiative that has driven the infrastructure development,
the Group plans to build its own construction project teams with
various construction qualifications to stretch its services ranges
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to cover the construction industry in China in order to solidify the
construction business of the Group. Currently, a construction
project team for prefabrication buildings was in place through
the Group’s acquisition of a prefabricated precast construction
business in June 2018. There is a trend in the increased usage of
prefabricated components in the construction sector under the
support of Chinese government’s green building development
strategy. | believe that prefabrication construction business will
shine on stage in China.

During the year, the Group encountered setbacks in launching of
the ecological LED cultivation cabinet system to the market. In
2016, the Group had successfully developed the first prototype
of ecological LED cultivation cabinet system and it would have
since been gone into mass production and marketing. However,
due to certain technical issues to having revamped the system,
the Group postponed the schedule for its implementation plans
that resulted in losing the best timing to launch the products to
the market. The economic downturn and fierce competition in the
hydroponics market have dealt a blow to the Group’s marketing
and production plans, thus the Group decides to suspend to
launch this product. However, under the recent globally increasing
concerns about healthy living and food security, the Group
believes that the demand for green food will continue to rise.
Green food is an indispensable part of our green life. Though
this business we put forward did not go in long way, the Group
will continue to commit to the green initiatives. We are still full
of confidence in its business prospect and will re-formulate the
sustainable strategy to realign the development of agricultural
business sector.

| expect that the Group is sailing into strong headwinds in 2019.
We have to maintain a high degree of vigilance against the
unpredictable international developments and sensitive external
environment. However, | have confidence that we could encounter
the recent setbacks and strive to achieve good performance
through the realignment of the business development strategy
amidst the possible global economic turbulence. The Group will
closely monitor the market development and the change in the
surrounding of the Group’s operations. We will continue to adhere
to our core philosophy of “Building a Green World” and the
ideology of “green building and green life” with quality, innovation
and effectiveness and achieve our expansion of the Group’s
business with a view to optimizing stakeholders’ interests and
maximizing their value.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our experienced management team, our
dedicated employees, and our professional legal and accounting
teams for their wavering support and commitment. We would also
like to express appreciation for the continuing support and trust of
our shareholders, clients, suppliers and government authorities.

Zhu Zhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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DISCUSSION AND

MANAGEMENT | & I8 [Z =3 L O HT

ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period” or “FY2018"), the Group mainly engages in (i) provision
of construction services and building materials supply (the
“Construction Business”), (i) development and sales of
agricultural equipment (the “Agricultural Business”), (i) trading
of clean coal and others (the “Trading Business”) and (iv)
provision of financial services (the “Financial Services”).

Construction Business

(@)

Concrete demolition services and other construction
services

Concrete demolition is one aspect of the construction
industry in Hong Kong. The Group’s concrete demolition
services were mainly concerned with the removal of pieces
or section of concrete from concrete structures by applying
a variety of methods, such as core drilling, sawing, bursting
and crushing. Concrete demolition services are usually
performed by subcontractors in (i) general building works,
especially for alteration and redevelopment projects; and (i)
civil engineering works. Concrete demolition work can be
applied in various situations, such as the construction of
underground utilities, creation of openings for elevator, door,
and window installation, redevelopment of buildings, roads,
tunnels and underground facilities, removal of concrete
during building construction and the preparation of road
surfaces.

The customers of the Group’s concrete demolition services
mainly include main contractors and subcontractors of
different types of construction and civil engineering projects
in Hong Kong. Such customers can generally be categorized
into public sector projects’ customers and private sector
projects’ customers. Public sector projects refer to projects
of which the main contractors are employed by Government
departments or statutory bodies in Hong Kong, while private
sector projects refer to projects that are not public sector
projects.
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In addition to the provision of concrete demolition services,
the Group provided services related to wet trades package
and brickwork including tiles finishing, screeding, granolithic,
plastering, blockworks for walls in Sung Wong Toi and
To Kwa Wan Stations (Shatin to Central Link) under a
construction sub-contract. Total value of the services under
the subcontract is approximately HK$71.0 million. Revenue
of HK$20.9 million from this project was recognised
during the Reporting Period. In late October 2018, the
Group received a notice of termination from its upper tier
subcontractor for the Shatin to Central Link project, due
to the sub-contracting relationship between that sub-
contractor and the main contractor of the project having
been terminated.

Prefabricated precast construction

Prefabricated precast construction is a new kind of
architecture with the construction process that is splitting
the traditional building products into precast reinforced
concrete member produced in the factory and transported
to the construction site for assembling into a whole building.
Precast concrete contributes to green building practices as
it can be very durable and energy-efficient. Prefabricated
precast construction also reduces construction waste
and debris on construction site as the precast concrete
components are factory-made and employed by exact-
batching technologies. In the 13th Five Year Plan for “Building
Energy Efficiency and Green Building Development” released
by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of China in February 2017, Chinese government set
out the goals to achieve on the development of green
building by 2020. The Group expects that the construction
industrialization which is represented by the prefabricated
precast construction has entered a new era of high speed
growth and development in the PRC.

MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FREHHRA

BRIRHUR R LIREIRFGIN - NEERIRREE
DEAVR‘EEREZWH R IVEN (D
RAR) KRR RBHINRY - BREEEE
2 FEME - AR KEREBER - D
B RT 4B 1E /%) 71,000,000 7T ° %IEH
Z Y58 20,900,000 8 7T e HARERR - =
T-N\F+AE AEEBELRADEHK
B— i LD ARIE R BB A - TYRREZIR
BznBEmEaesmnoBlERE &L -

(b) EEAXEH
KE A REETHEREEERD IR
TRRAE EE RO TR B AR R £+ AR &
ETRGARKTTEZEN —EHIY
BETA - BEUERLIEE MM LED
B BN EREER - HNTESUE
B B0 TRRAE E X R AR AR R AT
Rl - SRAC AR IR i T3R5 H)
BREESIR R R - RIBPBEERIRN =
T—EF - ARz [REMENRTE
EEER| T=0RE  PEBTRY
TRZZE-_ZEFMERGBRERRN
BiF - AREBEHPBARENZES
RENBERERCEEASRERNE
FREVHTE R -

Annual Report 2018 fF %

9



MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

EEEF ujufﬂﬂ& Tﬁ

On 1 June 2018, the Group came to own 61% of the equity
interest in Huizhou Precast Building Materials Co. Ltd.
(“Huizhou Precast”) through capital increase in the same,
thereby enabling it to successfully enter into the business
of prefabricated precast construction in the PRC. Huizhou
Precast is principally engaged in the business of production,
research and development of prefabricated precast concrete
components and glass fiber reinforced cement components,
product installation guidance. During FY2018, Huizhou
Precast contributed revenue of HK$4.5 million to the Group.

Agriculture Business

The Group has developed planting racks and an ecological LED
cultivation cabinet system using a green technology and a tailored
nutrient solution to grow hydroponic vegetables. In the PRC, the
urban population is increasingly demanding pesticide-free, clean
and fresh food. Therefore, partly automated farming at home may
be a feature of healthy lifestyle in the future.

After a series of marketing and promotion campaigns in 2017
and 2018, the Group received a number of trial orders from local
PRC and overseas distributors for testing their markets. However,
based on the current customer responses to the new products
of the Group, the Group believes that the lead time for the
Group’s products to gain wide market acceptance will be longer
than expected. As the growth in China’s domestic economy lost
speed during the year and it could get worse in the year ahead,
the Group decided to suspend the marketing and production
plan for the LED cultivation cabinets and other related products.
The Group cancelled the purchase orders of mass production
for the mini LED cultivation cabinets with the manufacturer and
has entered into negotiations with the manufacturer to refund the
trade deposits for these purchase orders.

During the Reporting Period, the Group primarily made sales of
planting racks through the distributors and leasing of planting
racks to hot-pot restaurants providing on-site planting and supply
of fresh vegetables for their customers.
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Trading Business

The Group is engaged in the trading of Inner Mongolia coal
energy in the PRC. Its coal resource is from the clean coal in
Ordos City, the PRC. Clean coal technology broadly refers to the
new technologies of process, burning, transforming and pollution
control, etc. in the whole process from development to utilization
of coal that aim to reduce pollution and emission and enhance
utilization efficiency.

The development of clean coal is an established national policy
of the PRC. Coal resource in the PRC is relatively rich and the
PRC is one of the few countries in the world that uses coal as the
main energy source. The clean coal industry will continue to play
an important role in the energy sustainability of the PRC and will
be an important direction of development in the coming 20 years.
Such development will be significant for the PRC to ease the
environment pollution from burning coal and reduce reliance on
imported ail. It is expected that there will be new market demand
and development opportunities for the clean coal industry in the
PRC.

Though the China government encourages the household
switch to using natural gas from coal as part of its anti-pollution
campaign, the Group expects that the demand and price of clean
coal in China will be relatively stable. However, the financial results
in the clean coal trading were still non-performing due to the high
cost of transportation from Inner Mongolia to other cities in the
PRC. Without further investment in the working capital to enlarge
its sales volume, the Group considers it faces challenges to turn
around its loss.

In the past years, the rapid revenue growth of the trading
businesses, including LED products and clean coal, was bolstered
by increasing its investment in the working capital. Recently, the
global economy is, however, showing signs of a slowdown amid
trade disputes between China and United States. The Group is
now more concerned about the worsening credit quality of its
customers than the growth of its trading business. Recently, the
Group heeded warning signs that certain customers were running
into temporary cash flow problems, resulting from the ripple effect
of tightened financial environment. Under this uncertain situation,
the Group is taking steps to curtail the size of investment in the
trading business and to scale down the businesses in this area.
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Financial Services

The Group’s financial services business includes provision of
insurance brokerage and consultancy services in Hong Kong and
provision of commercial factoring services in the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided the factoring
loans of RMB9.4 million in total to customers. Certain factoring
loans were shown a warning sign of default from the customers’
repayment pattern, in which of certain loans had already turned
to be non-performing. The Group will keep alert on deteriorating
financial performance of the factoring customers and take
necessary actions to recover the loan.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately HK$49.7 million or 27.1%
from approximately HK$183.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “FY2017") to approximately HK$133.6
million for the Reporting Period. The analysis of revenue was
shown as follows:

Revenue by nature
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% o

RBERAR - AEBRFFREREERA
H AR#09,400,0007T - REHEREREK
PETREEFREHBEODR HAET
BERERATRER - AEEBHRERP
M BERABICRFTEGYLEBBEITEA
=&/

MO R

A

WABREBE-Z—+tF+=-A=1+—HLHF
E ((MBFEE—tF]) #9%) 183,300,000 %
TCR A #949,700,000%8 703K 27.1% 2 R & 5
#9#9133,600,000/8 7T © WADHTEAT :

EMEETHERA

FY2018 FY2017
MBEFEE-NF HRFE—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Construction Business B
— Provision for construction - R LR
services 83,803 71,835
— Prefabricated precast - e EE
construction 4,510 -
- Manufacturing and trading of - TBfE &SRR T E B
pre-stressed high strength BERB S - 8,581
concrete piles
Agriculture Business BEXEK
— Trading of ecological LED - RIRLEDA- RETEIENE
cultivation cabinet and others B NEM 878 9,110
Trading Business BEZEK
— Trading of clean coal and -BERREKES
mixed coal 38,206 8,057
- Trading of LED light sources - BB FRREEIMLED YR
for decoration - 85,462
— Others - H 5,681 -
Financial Services SEAREE
— Provision of financial services - $e it & B AR 553 238
133,631 183,283
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Provision of construction services

For the Reporting Period, the total revenue attributable to the
provision of construction services was approximately HK$83.8
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$12.0 million
or 16.7% as compared with approximately HK$71.8 million for
FY2017. The increase was primarily due to an increase in revenue
from construction services for Shatin to Central Link during
Fy2018.

Revenue from the concrete demolition services contributed
HK$62.9 million to the total revenue attributable to the provision of
construction services, representing a decrease of HK$7.1 million
from HK$70.0 million for FY2017, resulting from a decrease in
revenue contribution from certain large construction projects that
were completed during FY2018.

Revenue from the construction services for Shatin to Central
Link contributed HK$20.9 million to total revenue attributable to
the provision of construction services, representing an increase
of HK$19.1 million from HK$1.8 million for FY2017. This project
was terminated in October 2018 due to the sub-contracting
relationship between the upper-tier subcontractor and the main
contractor of the project having been terminated.

Prefabricated precast construction

The revenue attributable to the prefabricated precast construction
was approximately HK$4.5 million. The prefabricated precast
construction business was acquired through the capital injection
into Huizhou Precast Building Materials Co. Ltd in June 2018. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group had construction contracts in
hand with outstanding construction sum of approximately HK$5.7
million for the projects of manufacturing of the prefabricated
precast construction components and/or its installations, all of
which are expected to be completed before the second quarter
2019.

MANAGEMENT
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Trading of Agricultural Equipment

Revenue attributable to trading of Agricultural Equipment
decreased by approximately HK$8.2 million from HK$9.1 million
for FY2017 to HK$0.9 million for the Reporting Period. The
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in sales of planting
racks for FY2018.

Trading of clean coal and mixed coal

Revenue attributable to trading of clean coal increased by
approximately HK$30.1 million from HK$8.1 million for FY2017
to HK$38.2 million for the Reporting Period. The Group has
commenced the business of clean coal trading since August
2017. The growth in revenue for FY2018 was primarily due to an
increase in sales volume of clean coal and mixed coal.

The Group also recorded a revenue of HK$5.7 million from trading
of electrical appliances for the Reporting Period.

Financial Services

Revenue attributable to financial services was approximately
HK$553,000, as compared to HK$238,000 for FY2017. The
revenue from financial services comprised of approximately
HK$481,000 for insurance brokerage fee and approximately
HK$72,000 for interest income from factoring services.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately HK$0.1 million
from approximately HK$28.7 million or 15.6% for FY2017 to
approximately HK$28.6 million for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit margin increased from 15.6% for FY2017 to 21.4%
for the Reporting Period. The increase was primarily due to a
decrease in revenue from trading business that has a lower gross
profit margin, resulting in an improvement in overall gross profit
margin.
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Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately HK$5.8 million from approximately HK$70.6 million
for FY2017 to approximately HK$64.8 million for the Reporting
Period. Such decrease was primarily due to a decrease of
marketing cost for ecological LED cultivation cabinet system.

(Loss)/Gain on investments at fair value through
profit or loss

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded net realized
losses of HK$35.7 million on investments at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group disposed of all short term investments in
the securities listed in Hong Kong during the Reporting Period. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any investment in
listed securities.

During FY2017, the Group recorded a gain of HK$51.4 million on
investments at fair value through profit or loss, of which HK$20.4
million was a net realized gain on sales of listed securities and
HK$31.0 million was net fair value gain on the listed securities.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the
Company

The Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$194.8 million, as compared to a profit of
HK$18.1 million attributable to owners of the Company. The
reasons for turning profit into loss were primarily due to a
combined effect of (i) a loss of approximately HK$35.7 million
in sales of investments at fair value through profit or loss during
the Reporting Period as compared with a gain of approximately
HK$51.4 million in sales of investments at fair value through
profit or loss in FY 2017; (i) an increase of HK$1.7 million in
share-based payments as staff cost and consultancy expenses;
(iv) an increase of HK$46.6 million in impairment loss on trade
receivables, primarily for the customers of trading business;
(v) an impairment loss of HK$47.8 million in association with
discontinuing the business plan for the ecological LED cultivation
cabinet system.
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Use of Proceeds of Initial Public Offerings

The net proceeds from the placing of the shares of the Company
(the “Share(s)”) in connection with the listing (the “Listing”) was
approximately HK$ 31.2 million. During the period from 15 August
2014 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”), the net proceeds from the Listing were applied as

BRXARBRENMEREAR

B@ELEm (W) BERAFRS ([B
% 1) Fri85R B F 5 A 4931,200,0008 7T © 7
—E-MENATHEB (WA 2=F
—NF+_A=+—B L8R ((HREH ) -
RS FOEFEEENT AR

follows:

Actual use
of proceeds
Planned use of (7] o {o)
proceeds as stated 31 December
in the Prospectus 2018
Fri8sIER
BE-Z-N\F
BRERMMAMSE +—A=+—H0K
REWRERE BRA®
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BEAT BEAT

Enhancing machinery and RIS MR A
equipment 16.4 8.7
Strengthening manpower AN EIR 4.6 4.0
Increasing marketing efforts IneEmISHEEN TIE 1.7 1.7
Repayment of bank borrowings (Ei&R1TE K 5.5 55
General working capital —MREEES 3.0 3.0
31.2 22.9

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of
proceeds as stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 7 August
2014 (the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation and
assumption of future market conditions made by the Group at the
time of preparing the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied
based on the actual development of the Group’s business and the
industry.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 14 May 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company agreed
to place, through the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up
to 80,898,000 new shares of the Company to not less than six
placees at a price of HK$0.50 per placing share.
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On 30 May 2018, an aggregate of 80,898,000 placing shares,
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing agreement
dated 14 May 2018 was successfully placed to not less than
six placees, which are independent of and not connected with
the Company within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules, at a
placing price of HK$0.50 per placing share.

The approximate gross and net proceeds from the placing
amounted to HK$40.5 million and HK$39.5 million respectively.
During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds were utilised in
accordance with the intended use at the time of the placing, that
is, (i) approximately HK$9.2 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB7.3 million) for capital injection into Huizhou Precast Building
Materials Co. Ltd; (i) approximately HK$12.8 million for business
development in trading business; and (i) approximately HK$17.5
million as general working capital.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank deposits
of approximately HK$39.2 million (2017: approximately HK$35.0
million).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 (defined
as total borrowings including interest bearing and noninterest
bearing, divided by the Group’s total equity) was approximately
0.38 (2017: approximately 0.17).

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the Reporting Period. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments
can meet its funding requirements from time to time.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations
from various currencies, such as United States dollars and
Chinese Renminbi. Since Hong Kong dollars remains pegged
to the United States dollars within a defined range, the Group
is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk against
the United States dollars. The Group has certain subsidiaries
operating in mainland China, in which most of their transactions,
including revenue, expenses and other financing activities, are
denominated in Chinese Renminbi. The Group is not exposed
to any significant foreign exchange transaction risk in relation to
these currencies and had not entered into any foreign exchange
contract as hedging measures against these currencies.

Environment Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to environmental-friendly development
as a part of social responsibility. The Group achieves this
through rational resources utilization and compliance with
applicable environmental laws and practices of environmental
protection, seeking to contribute to the improvement of ecological
environment and sustainable development. The Group continues
to improve the environmental performance as an integral and
fundamental part of the business strategy and operating methods.

Please refer to the “Environment, Social and Governance Report”
contained in this annual report for further information on the work
down and efforts made by the Group on environment protection,
legal compliance and other aspects for the sustainable growth
and development of the businesses of the Group.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations

During the Reporting year and up to the date of this report, the
Board was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 13 March 2018, the Company and an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(“Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company
conditionally agreed to sell 51% of the entire issued share capital
of Mansion Point Internation Limited (the “Disposal Group”)
to such independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$30,755,000 (the “Disposal”).
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The Company and the Purchaser entered into amendment
agreements on 13 July 2018 and 4 February 2019, respectively
whereby the completion date as set out in the Disposal
Agreement has been amended to on or before 31 March 2019.

Debts and Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$40.0 million, as compared to
approximately HK$40.0 million as at 31 December 2017. The
annual interest rates of the borrowings for the Reporting Period
ranged from 0% to 7.5% (2017: 0% to 5%) per annum. All of
the borrowings are unsecured and matures in one year. It was
accounted for as current liabilities of the Group. All of the above
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

Capital Commitments

The Group does not have material capital commitments as at 31
December 2018.

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 153 staff
(31 December 2017: 128 staff). Total employee costs for the
Reporting Period including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$53.8 million (FY2017: approximately HK$48.6
million).

The salary and benefit levels of the employees of the Group are
competitive. This is very important as the construction industry
has been experiencing labour shortage in general. Individual
performance of our employees is rewarded through the Group’s
salary and bonus system. In addition, the Group provides
adequate job training to employees in order to equip them with
practical knowledge and skills to tackle situations and challenges
encountered in diverse work sites.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
Shareholders for the Reporting Period (FY2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

E€ The company lays down the management norms and principles through the way of constituting the
management guidelines, and manages the major matters. The principle of integration of power and
responsibility is implemented in the work. The departments and individuals have the right to decide and
control the specific affairs within the scope of responsibility.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITESE

Mr. Zhu Zhou, aged 45, is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Zhu obtained a Master of Business Administration from The University of lowa in 2005. He obtained
a Ph.D. in Agricultural Economic Management from Huazhong Agricultural University in 2005 and completed the
postdoctoral research in the area of Business Administration at Renmin University of China in 2010. Mr. Zhu is
experienced in corporate management and business development. Mr. Zhu has held positions including general
manager of Beijing Zhongnong Seed Co., Limited (1t =# EEE AR H T2 A]), chief executive officer and
executive director of China Agri-Products Exchange Limited (Stock code: 00149) and general manager of Hubei
Kairui Baigu Agricultural Technology Corporation Ltd (481t 5lis B & EEBHE RO ER R 7).

KMELE - 4558 BWITES EFSTFMARBTRER - REAR —_ZETHFREEEREASTIEHEER
T2 - FR_ETRFEFETREAREELBEEBLEMUIN T -SFRRTEAARKELXEIRE
TRIARKE - REERCEEEMERIRTEREEER - RELEFRAILRTRBEERET AR ZALE -
TEREMRXZARAR (BRMHRSE  00149) 2 TTHRAHFNTER LRI AREERMEBRO AR AR Z
R -

Ms. Jiao Fei, aged 37, is an executive Director. She obtained a diploma in Property Management in Henan
Business College (now known as Henan University of Animal Husbandry & Economy) on 1 July 2004. Ms. Jiao
has around 12 years of working experience in property management and business operations. She was hired by
Shenzhen Zhenyue Real Estate Co. Ltd* (FJIMIREFEEBRR A F]) as an investment promotion manager for
eight months in 2015.

BRLZL 375 RATES - KRN _TTMNFLA-RESTEEERSEMNER (RB RN EHERLES
Br) MEETECR - FRINEEMELRDELLETEERN 12FNTIELR - RR-_T-RAFXRYIMIRES
WEBRARIREMSRERERE - THN\EAR -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHTES

Mr. Chan Kam Wah, aged 43, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree
in Accounting from Napier University, Edinburgh of Scotland and a master degree in Business Administration
from University of Sunderland. Mr. Chan is also a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountant and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 10 years
of experience in accounting and finance. He is currently an executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0907) and an independent non-executive director of Life Healthcare Group Limited
(Stock code: 0928).

BREBESLSE - 4357 REUIFNITES - RELRSHBRE T EMNAARZ S 22U RREEAZE 2T
BEERTRM - RELETAERBEBFARGHMARERGERBEGIMAEEER - REUENSH SRS
HHEFBA0FKR - HERASHAZEBREEARAR (ROAIR : 0907) 2R TEZREMBRREEESF
BRAF (RS : 0928) 2 B IFHMITES o

Mr. Liu Yingjie, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Liu obtained a Doctor of Management
degree from China Agricultural University in 2005. He is a researcher and an expert in industrial economy and
regional development. Mr. Liu holds positions as Chairman of Shenzhen Liying Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (&3IIEEE
AR ABR A 7)) and Director of Global Agricultural Technology Innovation and Development Center of Tsinghua
University* (BEAZ2IREZERTAIZES L EM). He has served as Deputy Secretary General of China
Agricultural Society* (7 Bl 2 2 & BIf4ZE &), Deputy Director of Xinjiang Agriculture Department* (158 B A2 2 %
2 8E2 F<), Deputy Director of the Department of International Cooperation of the Ministry of Agriculture* (& 2£ 2B &
B4 £ 8l A1) and Deputy Director of the Department of Personnel and Labour* (A &4 & & 8l 7).

BIRBRAE 505 0 RBUFWITES - AN _TTRFRTEREABEEEB LB - RASEXRKLEHE
BEFERSTEANNETENER - FEESRBREVMHRERARETRLBERBRREERMAIFERT
DEME - RAERETTRREGRNER  MEBEEIREXEIRER REHBRAEREIRREIAZLSHFE
AIREB -

Mr. Cao Hongmin, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor of Laws and
a Master of Economics from Lanzhou University (B/1X&%) and a Doctor of Management from China Agricultural
University. Mr. Cao has also undertaken post-doctoral research in history from Peking University. Mr. Cao
holds positions including vice president of Shenzhen Fengqun Chanye Service Group* (/&I 8 B 2= % iR 5 5
), chairman of the board of director of Shenzhen Heyuan Technology Co., Ltd* (ZIITMGERIE AR A R),
department head and professor of China Agricultural Deveopment Research Institute” of the Beijing Tangyongtong
College* (It 55 AV ER B 22 EMFEPF) and chairman of Shenzhen Huayue Public Welfare Financial
Innovation Center* (Z3II Tt HIRE Nz BEIFTH ).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERERERERREFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

Mr. Liu Yang is vice president of the Group, who is responsible for assisting in formulation of development
strategy in Asia-Pacific region, financial and risk management, internal controls and strategic tax planning. Mr. Liu
is a Certified Public Accountant registered with the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Tax Agent registered with The China Certified Tax Agents Association. He has held various financial controller and
assistant financial controller positions. He has served as a Chief Accountant of Hubei Yuhui Construction Group
Co., Ltd.* (it FrEEREB AR A 7)) and Chief Financial Officer of Beijing Powerhorse Machinery Co., Ltd. (3t
Tk BB PR A B)). He was also a financial controller (financial director) of Shenzhen Kingsino Technology Co.,
Ltd. (Stock code: 002548), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu is currently a director and
partner of Shenzhen Jinghu Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* (ZYITEEMIREZAABR A 7). Mr. Liu also has
extensive senior management experience in corporate financing and asset management.

IS BERAKBRIAY - AR BEHEEAMEAZERERE - M MEREE - REREH SRR RE -
B4 R B M SRR 75 & L M eV M & 5tAm K o B AR SR 15 & e M A0 MR RN » % B RS EM 42
BN ETEEIRETIL - B MBI TIEEREBER AR ZEFESM M RESERMER AR ZEFYBE
BAERERITEH RO AR AR (BRMHRSE : 002548 - —RRNFRYIEFEFXZ B L2 AR]) 2 R58
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REEENEEER -

Mr. Yang Zilin is vice president of the Group, who is responsible for assisting in formulation of development
strategy in Asia-Pacific region, project management, investment strategy and driving the Group’s business
opportunities across the various industries. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor of International Finance and Trade from
Peking University and a Master of Business Administration from Beihang University. He has over 20 years’
experience in proprietary investment, asset and wealth management, venture capital, finance and project
investment. He had ever worked as general manager of Beijing Zhang Ge Investment Asset Management Limited*
At REIRE EEEIE AR A 7)), general manager (Corporate) of Founder Fubon Fund Management Co. Ltd. (77
FEHESEEHRAF), general manager (Fixed Income) of Huarong International Trust Co. Ltd. EERIEIE S+
AR & T2 R)), executive general manager (Bond investment) of Cinda securities Co., Ltd ({53E & F % B R A 7).
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The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Reporting Period.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognize the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term
and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the Board
is committed to upholding good corporate standards and
procedures for the best interest of the Company’s shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code’) in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices.
Issuers are expected to comply with the code provisions or devise
their own code on corporate governance on the terms they
consider appropriate provided that considered reasons are given.
Throughout the Reporting Period, save as disclosed below, the
Company had complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Code with the exception of the deviations as explained:

A.2.1 Separation of the roles of chairman and chief
executive

The Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Che Xiaoyan who served as chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company resigned
on 24 August 2018. Mr. Zhu Zhou was appointed as chairman
of the Board on 19 September 2018 and chief executive office
of the Company on 16 October 2018. The Board considers that
such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered to be
more efficient to have a single person to be the chairman of the
Company as well as to discharge the function of chief executive
officer with the support of the management. In certain core
businesses, Mr. Zhu also delegates its power and authority to
certain other executive Directors and management who have
extensive experience in these specific industries. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is adequately
ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals.
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E.1.2 Chairman’s attendance at general meeting

The Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. The then
chairman of the Board, Ms. Che Xiaoyan, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018
due to business reasons. The executive Director, Ms. Jiao Fei, had
taken the chair at such general meeting pursuant to the article 70
of the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committee”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out in this annual report.
Under the terms of reference, the duties of the Board in respect of
corporate governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3.  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the

composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhu Zhou (Chairman) (appointed on 19 September 2018)

Ms. Jiao Fei
Ms. Che Xiaoyan (Chairman) (resigned on 24 August 2018)

Mr. Li Shunmin (Vice chairman) (resigned on 13 August 2018)

Ms. Guan Jincheng (resigned on 13 August 2018)
Mr. Man Wai Lun (resigned on 19 September 2018)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Note)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lin Hongtong (resigned on 24 August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Kam Wah
Mr. Liu Yingjie (appointed on 19 September 2018)

Mr. Cao Hongmin (appointed on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on 13 September 2018 and resigned
on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Bai Honghai (resigned on 13 September 2018)

Mr. Li An Sheng (resigned on 6 September 2018)

Mr. Chen Yongquan (resigned on 6 September 2018)

Note:

EEEdAMX
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Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung”) was appointed as independent non- — #ZE 54 ([#EAL]) R —F—NF—H -+
executive Director on 24 January 2018 and re-designated as executive ~— HEZTEBE T IHHTEERR —E—F/A
Director on 2 August 2018. Mr. Chung then resigned as executive Director = F 1T B#iTE F - 4B LA ER - F— /1 F
on 19 September 2018. NATNAGFFRTESE -
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The Company complied with the requirement under Rule 5.05(1)
and Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018, except during the period from 6
September 2018 to 18 September 2018, the Company had only
two independent non-executive Directors, which results in the
number of independent non-executive Directors falling below the
minimum number required under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence. In this connection, the Company has received
positive confirmations from all of the independent non-executive
Directors. Based on the confirmations received, the Company
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent under the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of
the Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there is no financial business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.

Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board had 23 meetings and 1
general meetings. The attendance of the respective Directors at
the Board meetings and general meetings are set out below:

Executive Director HITESE
Mr. Zhu Zhou KMot E
Ms. Jiao Fei FEREZT
Ms. Che Xiaoyan BTt
Mr. Li Shunmin FlER % E
Ms. Guan Jincheng EIREEA
Mr. Man Wai Lun NiRBE ST E

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Note) ERBSAE ()

FHITES
MBI E

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lin Hongtong

Independent Non-executive Bk EHTEE

Director

Mr. Chan Kam Wah PREpEE S A
Mr. Liu Yang 2G5t

Mr. Liu Yingjie 2GR A
Mr. Bai Honghai SPsEie
Mr. Li An Sheng FRESE
Mr. Chen Yongquan PRERES A
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBAE

Note:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung”) was appointed as independent non-
executive Director on 24 January 2018 and redesignated as executive
Director on 2 August 2018.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors in respect
of the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”). After
specific enquiries of all the Directors by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard of dealing set out in the Code of Conduct throughout
the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal system and corporate governance. In this
regard, the Group has always encouraged our Directors to attend
relevant training courses to receive the latest news ad knowledge
regarding corporate governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has encouraged all
Directors to attend at least one training course on the updates of
the GEM Listing Rules concerning good corporate governance
practices. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the latest requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.
The Group has also adopted a policy to reimburse the Directors
for any relevant training costs and expenses incurred concerning
corporate governance and internal control.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules and to
assist the Board to discharge its duties. Currently, three
committees has been established, i.e. the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The function and responsibilities
of these committees have been set out in the relevant terms of
reference which are of no less stringent than that stated in the
Code. The relevant terms of reference of each of the three can
be found on the Group’s website (www.gf-holdings.com). All
committees have been provided with sufficient resources and
support from the Group to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 2 August
2014 with its terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules, and provisions C.3.3 and C.3.7 of
the Code. The majority of the Audit Committee members must be
independent non-executive Directors and must be chaired by an
independent non-executive Directors. If any member of the Audit
Committee ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to be a
member of the Audit Committee automatically.
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The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualification or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In addition, the majority of the
Audit Committee shall be independent non-executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Chairman), Mr. Liu Yingie
and Mr. Cao Hongmin.

The Company complied with the requirement under Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2018, except during the period from 6 September 2018 to 18
September 2018, the Company had only two Audit Committee
members, which results in the number of Audit Committee
members falling below the minimum number required under Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others (for
the complete terms of reference, please refer to the Company’s
website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of the Company’s external auditors, and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company'’s external auditors;

2. to review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging the
Company'’s external auditors to supply non-audit services, if
any;

4. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements

and annual report and accounts, half-year report and review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

5. to discuss with the Company’s external auditors questions
and doubts arising in audit of annual accounts;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

to review the letter of the Company’s management from
the Company’s external auditors and the management’s
response;

to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system as included in the Company’s annual report
prior to submission for the Board’s approval;

to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management system;

to discuss the internal control system with the Company’s
management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and management’s response to these findings;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and

to report to the Board on that matters pursuant to the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee and consider other
topics as defined by the Board.

10.

11.

12.

13.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held 4
meetings. The attendance records of the members of the Audit
Committee during the Reporting Period are summarized below:

RIWERR - BEREZESRITT4RE5%H -
RIREBA  BERZEENE 2 L EEEM
gk

Attendance/
Number of meetings
HERE EERE
Member of Audit Committee EREEEHE
Mr. Chan Kam Wah (Chairman) PREGIESLE (F/E) 4/4
Mr. Liu Yingjie (appointed on QG- 1/1
19 September 2018) (R=ZF-NFENATNHEZF)
Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on Bkt (RZFE—NFAA+T=ZHEZT 1/1
13 September 2018 and RRZFE—NF—H=1+=HEFHF)
resigned on 22 January 2019)
Mr. Bai Honghai (resigned on BgRE (RZFE—/NFAA+=HEHT) 3/3
13 September 2018)
Mr. Li An Sheng (resigned on FRESE (RZFE—NFAANHEHTE) 3/3
6 September 2018)
During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed MRImEHA - ERZE@EEHAEEEE

the Group’s audited results for the year ended 31 December
2017, the unaudited quarterly results of the Group for the three
months ended 31 March 2018, the unaudited interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018, the unaudited
quarterly results of the Group for the nine months ended 30
September 2018 and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed the
Group’s audited annual results for the Reporting Period, this
annual report, and confirmed that this annual report complies
with the applicable standard, the GEM Listing Rules, and other
applicable legal requirements and those adequate disclosures
have been made. There is no disagreement between the Directors
and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment
of the external auditors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Audit Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 2 August
2014 with terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34
to 5.36 at the GEM Listing Rules, and provision B.1.1 to B.1.4
of the Code. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Cao Hongmin
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Kam Wah and Mr. Liu Yingjie, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include (for the complete terms of reference, please
refer to the Company’s website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. 1o consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

3. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

4.  to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

5.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

6. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

7. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
and
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8. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
6 meetings. The attendance records of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are summarized below:

8. W MHEREZITAKREMFERE

RERESMYRHEELZYE - HER
HELPRA OB HREEG
WG —B ARRETEAEEE -

RBEHAN > FTHRESRITTOREZE
¥rZ B @K B hF e T

Attendance/

Number of meetings

HERE ERRE

FHEEERE

Member of Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Li An Sheng (Chairman) TRERE (EFE) 3/3
(resigned on 6 September 2018) (R=ZF—NFE/NANHEFHE)

Ms. Guan Jincheng (resigned on ~ E#BIE5EE (REF—NENA+=HEHE) 2/3
13 August 2018)

Mr. Chen Yongquan (resigned on — [R¥E#ERE (R=ZF—/NFE/ AN HEHE) 3/3
6 September 2018)

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (appointed on B BETE (REFE—NFNA+=HEZF 2/2
13 August 2018 RR=ZF—/VFNAF+LHEFTE)
and resigned on
19 September 2018)

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (appointed on  BREBZESLE (R=ZF—NFNANHEZ(E) 3/3
6 September 2018)

Mr. Bai Honghai (Chairman) BgRE (£E) 1/1
(appointed on 6 September (R=ZF-NEFENANAEZT
2018 and resigned on RRZE=NFNH1T=HEF)
13 September 2018)

Mr. Liu Yang (Chairman) RG5E (FE) (R=ZF—/NFANA+=HEZF 3/3

(appointed on 13 September

RR—F—HF—H =+ HEFHT)

2018 and resigned on
22 January 2019)

Mr. Liu Yingjie (appointed on
19 September 2018)

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed (1) the remuneration of Directors appointed during the
Reporting Period; (2) the terms of the service agreement with
the appointing Directors; and (3) the remuneration packages and
performance of the Directors during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that the
Remuneration Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 2 August 2014
with terms of reference in compliance with provisions A.5.2 to
A.5.6 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Zhu Zhou
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Kam Wah and Mr. Cao Hongmin. Mr. Zhu
is the chairman of the Board and executive Director, whereas Mr.
Chan and Mr. Cao are independent non-executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include (for the complete terms of reference, please
refer to the Company’s website at www.gf-holdings.com):

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendation on proposed changes, if any, to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to review the Company’s board diversity policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing
the said policy;

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

4.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
held 6 meetings. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are summarized below:

RBERA - REREGRTTTOREH
REZBENEMNHFELEBMMT

Attendance/

Number of meetings

KRB EBRH

Member of Nomination
Committee

Mr. Zhu Zhou (Chairman)
(appointed on 19 September
2018)

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Chairman)
(appointed on 13 September
2018 and resigned on
19 September 2018)

Ms. Jiao Fei (Chairman)
(appointed on 24 August 2018

REZEEME

RAMEE (£/E)
(R=F—=NFEAATNABZE)

BEBELE (TE)
(R=F—-NFEAAT=AEZIT -
R=ZF—=/NFAA T AGE)

Rz (£E)
(R-F-NENA_FHHEZ(T

11

11

11

and resigned on WR=ZFE—-NF/NA+=HEFF)
13 September 2018)

Ms. Che Xiaoyan (Chairman) BESLT (F/F) 3/3
(resigned on 24 August 2018) (R=ZF—NENA=1+IHEHT)

Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on %Jﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁi (R=ZF-NFENAT=HEZF - 2/2
13 September 2018 and R=ZF—NF—H=1+ZHFHF)
resigned on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Bai Honghai (appointed on AHEEE (RZE-/NFNANAEZ(E 1/1
6 Spetember 2018 and WRZFE-NENA+=HEHT)
resigned on 13 September 2018)

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (appointed on  BREBESLE (R=ZF—NEFENANHEZ(E) 3/3
6 September 2018)

Mr. Li An Sheng (resigned on FRESE (RZFE—NFAHANHEFF) 3/3
6 September 2018)

Mr. Chen Yongquan (resigned on  BR¥ERESEE (R=ZF—NF/ AN HEHT) 3/3
6 September 2018)

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, and reviewed the qualifications of the Directors and the
progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy.

Saved as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that the
Nomination Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report.

GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAHE

RmEHE REZE8eeEHESFER
B RERKEEK  HEBLIFNTES
MBI ERNEFEREREFTENEZT
LR BB

BRARESREEIN  EFSRN - RREH
MBEAREAHIL  RERZEEEXE
TTHRGLBE -



NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) on 1 January 2019. It aims at strengthen the
transparency and accountability of the Board and/or Nomination
Committee on election of directors including independent non-
executive directors. The Board will review the Nomination Policy
from time to time.

Selection Criteria of Directors

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate to be nominated to the Board for it to consider and
make recommendation to shareholders for election as directors of
the Company at the general meetings and appoint him/her to fill
casual vacancies.

° Qualifications and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Company’s business is involved or is going to be
involved;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

° Reputation for integrity; and

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members (if any) for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members;

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director of the Company. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary;

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the factors stated above
and make recommendation(s) to the Board’s consideration and
approval;

In the case of the re-election of a director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution of
the directors to the Company and their services, their participation
and performance within the Board, and whether such director
still meets the needs to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the
members of the Board and summary of the policy is as follows:

1. selection of Board members will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

2. the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the diversity policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness of the diversity policy.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends dated 1 January 2019. The policy aims to enhancing
transparency of the Company and thus facilitating the
shareholders and the potential investors of the Company to make
informed investment decision relating to the Company. The Board
will review the dividend policy from time to time.

While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in the
future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will depend
on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

3.  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

4.  the Group’s liquidity position;

5. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

6. any other factors that the board of directors of the Company
deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Board’s discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any dividend
in the amount set out in any of the plans or at all. The Company’s
dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be
declared or paid by the Company in the future.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”) as the Group’s external
auditors to conduct audit of the financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The auditor’s remuneration
paid or payable for the Reporting Period is set out below:

Services rendered

REURE

ER IR E e

Audit of financial statements

B 24 B 37 A

RS HREA - AEEEE AT EZESRT A
EBMBRAR ((REZRE]) RAKEINE
THE - WETARBEE-T—\F1+=
A=t BLEFEMBRENEZ - REH
GISESEFANEe - Gl ey A

Fee paid or payable
ENRNESER

HK$
BT

880,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee (“Mr. Cheung”) is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Cheung has adequate knowledge on the
Company to discharge his duty as the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting
Period.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Man Wai Lun resigned as the compliance officer of the
Company on 19 September 2018. Mr. Zhu Zhou has since been
appointed as the compliance officer of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management. The Board must ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains effective internal control and risk
management systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the Company.
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The Board oversees the overall risk management and internal
control system of the Group on an ongoing basis and endeavors
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems compatible with the
Commissioner of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) - Integrated Framework 2013 principles are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and provide only reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy set out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its division. It identifies and assesses
the principal risks on a quarterly basis with mitigation plans
to manage those risks;

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group,
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented;

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal controls.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures that the risk associated with our different
business units are effectively controlled in line with the Group’s
appetite.
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The Company does not have an internal audit department and
engaged an external internal control consultant, CT Partners
Consultants Limited, to conduct review on the internal control
system of the Group during the year. The review covering
certain procedures on the human resources management and
implementation of risk management policies of the Group and
make recommendations for improvement and strengthening of
internal control system. No significant areas of concern that may
affect the financial, operational, compliance, controls and risk
management of the Group have been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting function and
the Board has reached the conclusion that the Group’s risk
management and internal control system was in place and
effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of
inside information with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by
the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation
of the inside information.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements and to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared in a manner which reflects
the true and fair view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows
of the Group and are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards and principles, applicable laws and disclosure
provisions required under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors
are of the view that the financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis.
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To the best knowledge of the Directors, there are no uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Statement of the Company’s external auditors’ responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a forum in which
the Board and the Shareholders communicate directly and
exchange views concerning the affairs and overall performance
of the Group, and its future developments, etc. At the AGM,
the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
will answer questions raised by the Shareholders. The external
auditor of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM
to address to queries of the Shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the auditors’ report.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on
6 June 2019, the notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to this meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).
EGMs shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, all reasonable
expenses incurred by the acquisition(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of
the Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required
under the Articles will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
7 days.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars. Shareholders
may also make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information has been made publicly available by
the Company. All written enquiries or requests may be forwarded
to the Company’s head office or by fax to (852) 3571 9460, or by
email to info@gf-holdings.com.

The addresses of the Company head office and the Company’s
share registrars can be found in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting, public
announcement and financial reports. The investors are also able
to access the latest news and information of the Group via our
website (www.gf-holdings.com).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
shareholders and encourage them to attend the forthcoming AGM
and all future general meetings.

The shareholders may also forward their enquiries and
suggestions in writing to the Company to the followings:

Address: Suite 3513, Tower 6

The Gateway, Harbour City
9 Canton Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@gf-holdings.com
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ABOUT GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED

We, Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), believe
operating sustainably and quality growth is the key to our success
and the economic basis for us to practice social responsibility. The
Group strives to integrate environmentally friendly practices into all
aspects of our daily operations to grow its business and create a
positive impact in the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group and its
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in (i) provision of construction
services and building materials supply, including provision of
concrete demolition and construction engineering services,
manufacturing and trading of prefabricated precast construction
components and prestressed high strength concrete piles, (ii)
development and sales agricultural equipment, (iii) trading of light-
emitting diode (“LED”) light sources for decoration and clean coal
and (iv) provision of insurance brokerage and consultancy services
in both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”).

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix
20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM made
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The information
in this ESG Report is derived from the Group’s official documents
and statistical data, as well as the integration and summary of
monitoring, management and operational information provided by
subsidiaries of the Group. Information on the environmental and
social aspects of the report is set out below whilst information on
the governance aspect is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 24 to 45.

The reporting period of this ESG report is from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2018 (“Reporting Period”). This report highlights
significant environmental and social impacts of our business
activities in provision of concrete demolition and construction
engineering services; manufacturing and trading of prefabricated
precast construction components and ecological LED cultivation
cabinet, which accounted for approximately 66.7% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue for the Reporting Period.
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Unless otherwise specified, the key performance index calculation
(except staff composition) covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. Quantitative disclosures in relation to our offices in the
PRC are excluded from this report due to either relatively small
environmental footprint or under establishment. While this report
only covers significant partial operations of the Group and the
Group aims to upgrade its internal data collection procedures and
gradually expand the scope of disclosure in future reports when
appropriate.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder’s expectation, view and feedback towards the
Group is of ultimate importance to its future development. The
Group has therefore committed itself to in-depth communication
with both internal and external stakeholders and presents our
updated operation condition to them proactively through various
channels. We integrate their opinions with our daily operational
decisions, strive to balance the interests of the parties and satisfy
the expectations and demands of stakeholders. The table below
shows a list of the Group’s stakeholders.

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder
o EHER RERGE
Investors ° Shareholders
REE i
o Potential investors
BEREE
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BAREREIN  BRESERTE (BRET
ARON) MEXAEBRNETENEE - BAR
MPBERAETNEEREL BHANRS
FRRERBEELNRE R PFHEEENSANER
M ARREERE T AEENIDE
B2E  AKEKBRERENRNIZRBER
SRF IRGEBRATERRNBEHE
FREAKELDE -

KESH

ROEHAEENHE - BERREHEM
BRERMSEAEE - Filt - AEERD
RERNII N EETREBE BEE
BEBREANFZRBMEERNZEN
e RAKEENERBMABBTLERE -
ZHFHEBETNRENRERDENE
HINFBR » TRIRAKEFNERE -

Communication Channel

>  Corporate website
=l

> Annual and interim financial report
FERP TGRS

> Quarterly reports and
announcements
FERERDE

> Annual general meetings
BREBERE

> Disclosure of listed information

KELETHER
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Stakeholder Groups

FrtpE4AR

Specific Stakeholder
BERHE

Communication Channel

BERE

Employees

=]

Customers

®F

Suppliers/Contractors

HEs, EEH

Community
#HE

Government

B

Senior management
SREEE

Staff

8T

Direct workers
EETA

Potential recruits

BEREER

Main-contractors
VS E0]
Buyers

BEX

Ultimate users
AP

Material suppliers
MEHEER
Sub-contractors
HEE

Service providers

BRI L E P

National and local community
organisations

2B & E it [E A

National and local governments
2B &8 U
Regulators

EE#E
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Direct communication
BEAR

Independent focus groups and
interviews

B BIE/ AR EH

Training and seminars

S RS

Regular performance assessment
FEARIE R

CSR and volunteering activities
TrEMSREREREE

Periodical meetings with contractors
and customers
HERELEFTHRE
Customers assessment

BFAHE

Designated customer hotline
BEFER

Social media

R

Suppliers assessment

Y TEREE

Daily work review

BHIERR

Site inspection/meeting with sub-
contractors

EMRR mYBERE

Charitable donations
RERE
Volunteering activities

GRAE

Written correspondence
EHEH

Statutory reports and general
disclosures
EEE R MR



MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to gain better understanding on the expectations,
perceptions and concerns of our stakeholders, we have engaged
our management team and employees in identifying the Group’s
material ESG issues. With the identified material ESG aspects,
we strive to ensure proper measures on significant issues are
addressed adequately throughout our business activities.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

With greater concerns from the general public on the impacts
of global warming and climate change, we acknowledge our
responsibility to protect the environment as an integral part of
our business operations. The Group is committed to upholding
high environmental standards, not only fulfil relevant requirements
under applicable laws and ordinances, but also to become a
sustainable leader and corporate citizen in our community and
industry.

EMISSIONS

Engaging in construction activities as a contractor for years,
it is inevitably that our operation activities have impact on our
environment. Emissions from our daily business activities mainly
represent greenhouse gases (“GHG”) emissions, noise, waste
and effluents while carrying out project. In order to combat the
challenge of climate change, and to minimise these emissions,
the Group implements industry-standard measures and continues
seeking practical means to mitigate their impact from our
operations.

Environmentally-Friendly Demolition Methods

Construction materials such as sands and cements stored
outdoor as well as the dust of the exposed construction area
are easily scattered in dry and windy weather. In order to prevent
the generation of dust during our works, methods such as
scarifying and shot-blasting are adopted. They are innovative and
environmentally friendly that equipped with vacuum cleanser as a
result little to no dust is emitted.
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For projects that involve indoor demolition works, demolition
machines are utilised as the robots are powered by 3-phase
electricity and equipped with hydraulic breaker or hydraulic
crusher, no exhaust gas and minimal vibration is caused during
works. Being operated by remote control, our workers are not
required to stay close to the working area, ensuring the safety of
our workers. In accordance with the Air Pollution Control (Non-
road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation, all our machineries
used on site are approved or exempted from the Environmental
Protection Department (“EPD”).

Splitting/Bursting is demolition method that a splitter is inserted
into a hole of the concrete structure drilled beforehand and bursts
the structure so that no noise and vibration will be caused during
operations.

Prefabricated Construction

In January 2018, the Group has entered the business of
prefabricated precast construction in the PRC as an attempt
to build responsibly. Unlike traditional construction methods,
prefabricated construction methods as prefabricated sub-
assemblies are constructed in a factory so that it allows for more
accurate operation and materials to be recycled and reused in-
house. Considerable amount of dust and noise emissions can
be further reduced attribute to the controlled environment of the
production factory. In our production factory, we have introduced
a water spraying device on site for daily maintenance of sub-
assemblies and prevention of dust scattering.

The largest source of the Group’s GHG emissions, was generated
from scope 1 — direct emissions or removals from sources, it
was attributed to the electricity use of lighting, air-conditioning,
electrical appliances and machineries and equipment during
operations. From December 2017 to April 2018, the Group has
provided accommodation to those PRC staff during their stay
in Hong Kong, which was the major source of our gaseous
fuel consumption. Since the emissions data from gaseous
consumption of 2017 contained the data for December 2017 only,
while the emissions data of 2018 covered the period January to
April 2018. Hence, there was a substantial increase in the relevant
emissions data.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, air emissions generated #HZ_ZT— )/ \F+_A=+—HIFE K

by the Group are as follows:

SEELMRERERT

Emissions data from REREEE
Gaseous Fuel R HERR BB
Consumption
Nitrogen Oxide (NO) RELH (NOW tonne M 29.16 5.02
Sulphur Oxide (SO.) ety (SO.) kg 7= 145.73 2517

For the year ended 31 December 2018, GHG emissions

generated by the Group are as follows:

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)

HEREREHEHRRRE (8E 1)

HE-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—HIFE K
EEELNEERESRIOT:

GHG emissions from mobile Carbon Dioxide (CO2) tonne 105.05 104.27
combustion sources — &tk (CO») i
MBI EEIR B8 = RESHEL Methane (CH.) kg 82.05 74.07
Bk (CHa) T
Nitrous oxide (N20) tonne 6.89 6.60
aftiAm (NO) Mg
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
RREEAEREHER (8E 2)
Electricity purchased from Carbon Dioxide (CO2) tonne 41.54 36.81
power companies —&{biR (CO») i}
HEHNRRIBENE T
Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (COx) kg 90.68 15.60
RPEHIANFBENER —&/tHR (CO») T
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)
Hits R EREHER (8E3)
Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (COx) tonne 2.79 1.91
BB ERAER —& bk (CO2) 155
Electricity used for processing Carbon Dioxide (CO») kg 122.11 111.27
fresh water and sewage —&1khx (CO2) T
by government department
BATEPIEAE N ERBRKKR
YIRS B R = SRS AR
Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (COx) tonne 5.43 9.71
B ERLRME LI T —&/tHR (CO») g
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Construction waste from daily operations includes general inert
waste and non-inert waste. The major approach to managing
construction waste in Hong Kong is the use of public filling
areas for reusable inert construction waste and landfills for non-
inert construction waste. The fill banks temporarily stockpile the
inert construction waste for later reuse in reclamation and site
formation works. In general, the Group categorises the waste
from construction works before removal from the site. General
inert waste from work, such as rocks, shall be reused as filling
materials at the site if applicable or disposed to public fill for
reclamation in the future. Other waste that is not applicable for
recycle or reuse shall be discarded to the public filing areas to
conserve landfill. Through actively monitoring and managing the
use of resources with the goal of reducing waste generation from
our construction activities and provide proper collection, storage,
transportation, disposal and treatment of wastes.

In respect of office waste, we shall continue to encourage
our employees to fully utilise all materials to avoid producing
unnecessary waste and to reduce paper usage through electronic
means.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of non-
hazardous waste produced by the Group was as follows:

BYEE

AREEELNREENBE —RBIEKIE
fEIEREY) - BEERBEEBRYNTIRTER
A ERNBEREEYSEENTIELE -
MIEE I REREY FHEEHER - HHEY
R IEIER Y - HERBANESR
WRTETRE - —RME AEESERZE
TRt BB ENHE E - TIEEE
W—RIBEEDIELE  EEABLATE
FE B EEM B EAFIETRIEA
RG22 - Ht N ERANERSE R E
MAIRERAREBETRIASTAMER - M
EEBEGRERNERERER - B RM
EEIREE LY M REYETTEE B
&7 EH - RENRE -

M AEREYNS  RAEREESBEER
DERABMHARR TN LEHNRE - FF
EFEREF AR ERER -

BE-T—\F+-A=+—BILEE 4
REEEOREEDOT -

Construction waste intensity BEEYRE tonne/construction site 1.18 2.62
WA, T
Construction waste FRERREY) tonne & 2,150.70 4,753.30

Due to our business nature (construction, development and sales
of agricultural equipment and trading business), no significant
hazardous waste was generated from our operations during the
Reporting Period.
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USE OF RESOURCES EIRE M

The Group’s major use of resources includes energy and water AEBH T BERERBIEERLICEE -
consumption. For energy use, both office and the project consume ¥R EERER M S @ RFINPHAZE N TIEIE
electricity and fuels for vehicle use. Fuel consumption attributes B = EHFEE HFIBEBE o BESHFE KR
mostly to equipment operation and ground transportation of B4 5% [ A &% 18245 1E Ko {8 B S 0 3R A 31t
equipment during delivery, while electricity consumption mainly — E:E# * M= I EE T BREENRASE
attribute to office use. We place great emphasis on resource % < RIS EEEEREH B HEBEE
conservation and strives to enhance the energy efficiency by IR - ELIRIEIEE LM ET LIS TE i
strengthening the maintenance of construction equipment, SERME -

optimising operation standards and adopting energy-saving

measures.

Several initiatives have been implemented in offices and  ##/A %= M i S 8% A1 HI 8L R H A M B i)

construction sites to control energy consumption as follows: AIFREWT -
Office ° Set and maintain average room temperatures between 24 C and 26T;
P /NE FRERERFTEIERAEN24E26E 2H
U Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and monitors) before leaving the
workplace,

BEF TIESPTATRERI T A=k (WHTENH - SR RER) -

° Energy-friendly electrical appliances and devices, including LED lighting, and computers
and projectors, have been installed; and
LZREBLERNHRE - BIELEDBARER IR - &

° Choose electrical appliances with high energy label (i.e. Grade 1 — most energy efficient
in the market) from the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme (“MEELS”) under
the Energy Efficiency (Labelling of Products) Ordinance (Cap. 598)
BERARN (URNE (EmRE) K0)) ($598%F) TRl eERMEHRETE ([7]
FIMRER YR EBE ) BERENERE (AFE—R - ETE LR akxm) BES

Site o Switch off non-essential lightings as well as idle machinery and equipment; and
Hh AR RatE N Z B0 RRAA DA S B B M Nl
o Various communications (posters, signs and memos) for promoting energy conservation
have been launched to raise construction workers’ awareness.
MO ERESMENRALR (WE®R  FERER) URSBRETIANEERES
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Apart from office operation, the major source of the Group’s
water consumption is from our construction segment. To
promote water conservation, the Group incorporated various
water conservation measures in offices and project sites. At our
construction sites, wastewater is collected and properly treated
by on site wastewater treatment facilities and then reused for
dust suppression and vehicle wheel washing or ground mud
to reduce the fresh water consumption. Sub-contractors were
also encouraged to work closely with our staff to implement
appropriate measures to prevent the waste of freshwater on site.

Since buildings account for a significant portion of the total energy
consumption and GHG emissions, we fully understand our role
as contractor and actively seeking opportunities to increase our
contributions. As we look to the future, we target to remain tight
controls on resources consumption and achieve sustainable
development.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the resources
consumption by the Group are as follows:

B AELEN  AEERICERNERIR
BRREED R - RIBEHIK  KEBERR
=R BRA T BRETKEE o NER
i - WAAIERILPARIZ) SRR IR
BRIRREK - Z RS E AR SIS EMBT
EimRia S ER R - SO RACHFE B
MBI BRERMEIEREE  HITE
ERERDHENRIORE -

HREEEEERBRES R EREHFRPIE
EEEMN - WPIRMRFUEREBEEIH
B ABTERS RS E MK TR
REARR PG EEHERERE AR
2l ERAIREER

BE-T—\F+-A=+—ALFE &
@O ERERET :

Electricity Consumption HE= kWh 65,616.46 53,704.00
T ELBF
kWh/employee 428.87 419.56
TEE &S

Gas Consumption ERE MJ 7,254.00 1,248.00
KEFH
MJ/employee 47.41 9.75
KEEEE

Water Consumption AkE m° 171.38 161.00
m*/employee 1.12 1.26
SNAKRBE
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not
involve any use of packaging materials.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In compliance with applicable environmental legislation, our
operating activities have no significant impact on the environment
and natural resources. For the sake of compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, we regularly assess the environmental risks
of our operations and adopt preventive measures as necessary to
reduce the risks.

In managing our emissions, the Group has compiled with the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354), Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358), Noise
Control Ordinance (Cap. 400), Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap.
466), Environment Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
and other regulations promulgated by governments and currently
applicable to the Group, as well as environmental requirements
from customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to air and GHG
emissions, noise control, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group values people and considers a respectful and fair
working environment to be vital to its operations. It is always the
Group’s initiative to provide a fair and competitive, periodically
reviewed compensation package to attract and retain quality
talents, in the form of a minimum wage security, maximum
working hours, compensatory leave, overtime allowance,
discretionary bonus, mandatory provident fund or pension
security, social insurance and rewards for long-term services.
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The Group has established a series of internal policies related
to employment according to anti-discrimination ordinances and
the guidance under Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), Laws
of Hong Kong, the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of
the PRC, as well as industry features and practices to ensure
that our employees are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as age, gender, marital status, family status, sexual
orientation, race, nationality or religion.

A comprehensive human resources management policy (i.e.
Staff handbook) was formulated to support human resources
function, which covers guidelines on recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods,
appraisal, training and other benefits, etc. With reference to
the prevailing market standard, the level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually on a performance basis.
We motivate employees by promotion and salary increment
based on results of annual performance appraisal, and to
award discretionary bonus in addition to basic salary. In our
demolition works subsidiary, a long service award is given to
those employees that have been employed for over 10 years as a
reward of loyalty.

We respect the voices of our employees. All employees are
welcomed to make comments and suggestions through various
communication channels such as letters, emails or reports to
their direct supervisors, department heads, or Human Resources
Department. All the received communications and the identities of
those employees are kept confidential and dealt with the highest
priority.

Staff Composition

The Group’s principal businesses are prefabricated construction
and demolition works, which demand plenty of physical labour
force, hence, traditionally male employees are a majority in the
workforce of the construction business. However, the Group
has also committed to striking a balance between male and
female employees in its working environment and providing equal
opportunity towards different gender employees.
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As at 31 December 2018, we employed a total of 153 staff, W-_ZE—NF+_-_A=+—8 ®ZALE
including back office and site staff. All our staff members are 153%ZE T - BIEEHMFIRMEE T - fT

located in Hong Kong and the PRC. BEITHNREERFHE -
Employees by Gender Employees by Employment Category
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Staff Turnover

During the Reporting Period, the Group has a turnover rate of
approximately 44%. Such high turnover rate was primarily due
to the change in our business strategies of withdrawing the plan
of mass production and repositioning the agricultural equipment
in the market as well as fluctuation in sales of LED light sources.
The employee turnover rate by gender is quite biased this year
with 38% of our male staff and 75% of our female staff leaving the
Group. Geographically, 24% of staff who are based in Hong Kong
left the Group, whereas in the PRC 63% of our staff there left.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employee turnover
categorised by age was as follows: 86% of those in the 18 to 30
years old bracket left the Group, 80% of those from the 31 to 40
years old bracket, 30% out of the 41 to 50 bracket, 22% of the
51 to 60 bracket, and none of those who were over 60 years old
left the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Recognising that construction is one of the higher risk industries
in occupational health and safety, we put safety first and are
committed to maintaining a workplace which is safe for our
people. To ensure that all employees are equipped with adequate
knowledge in protecting themselves from occupational hazards,
the Group has provided trainings for all levels of employees.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not
possess high risk areas related to OHS to its employees, except
for our construction business. As there are machineries and other
equipment in the construction sites, employees will be more
prone to industrial accidents. Hence, we are determined to ensure
that all construction works are carried out to achieve at practically
high health and safety standards. We focus on ensuring the
safety of our construction workers through providing protective
equipment such as safety helmets, safety shoes and high visibility
clothing to all personnel who work at construction sites. Relevant
OHS training is provided to our staff and workers such as safety
induction training, safety toolbox talks, specific training for high-
risk activities, periodic emergency contingency drills to heighten
employee awareness of workplace hazards and ensure they are
competent to discharge their OHS responsibilities and obligations,
and respond to emergencies. To better manage the health and
safety issues in our operations, designated personnel, Safety
Officer, are engaged to oversee safety issues. Safety Officers
regularly review and check for updates of relevant laws, and
perform site inspections to ensure prompt corrections are be
taken to prevent incidents.

To initiate improvement in OHS issues, our construction business
has continuously registered as a Green Cross Group member
under the Occupation Safety and Health Council. As a member
of the Green Cross Group, we are able to access to the OSHC'’s
library to obtain latest information and participate in study missions
and workshops to facilitate experience sharing and gain deeper
insights into implementation of best practices. The Group has
continued to optimise its work practices and daily management
for the sake of its staff’s health and safety with the aim to create a
safe, healthy and comfortable working environment. To this end,
our operations fully comply with applicable laws and regulations
such as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.
509), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282,), Factories
and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59), Laws of Hong
Kong, and Work Safety Law of the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not record
significant work-related injuries and fatalities. We target to remain
zero accident and fatalities in the coming years.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in relation to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and professionally
trained employees to its business growth and future success.
We are committed to providing career development platform for
our employees where everyone can achieve their career goals. In
line with the Group’s commitment on providing adequate training
opportunities to enhance employees’ knowledge and skills, we
have invested resources on the career development of employees
and encouraged employees from each level to participate in order
to enhance the competitiveness of the Group and the relevant
individuals. The Group also acknowledges the importance of
conducting performance appraisal with employees. On an annual
basis, performance appraisal is conducted between management
and employees for continuous improvement. Employees are
able to communicate and seek professional advice from their
supervisors on their personal career development training.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group highly respects human rights and freedom, and strictly
prohibits the uses of child and forced labour in our workplace
by adhering with the Employment of Children Regulations and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations under
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), Laws of Hong Kong,
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of the Minors.
Comprehensive recruitment procedures are in place to check and
verify the age of applicants before commencement of work. To
prevent the employment of child labour, we require the candidates
to present their valid proof of identity to ensure that they have
reached the legal working age. Important details such as job
duties, locations and working hours of the staff are also set out
clearly in the employment contract to protect their rights and
interests and forced labour is strictly prohibited.

GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAHE

R|EHA - NREEB AT TR REAR
RHEZE2TIFRELRERERTHERE
MARNEEBRERTENERLOEREN -

B4

AEBRASEARMEEXZINEEY
HESEBERMARKINEBEE - 7
HHREBRERHANEMMERBE B RAR
XERYE - RETASEARREHRENE
I & LA o (B B AN a8 S BB s - TR AP
EREENBEZRRAER  LHEER
MEEZ2E  NEeAKERARABNE
F 1 - AEBETHAYEBETEREZN
B2 wMEFHEREEREERREAR
Eiz - WEBRFHENE - EE A EEAR
FEREJELRETEBYSREAERE
B

T AR

AEESEEEAEESH  WEREBX
1% 57 Z (RIFEEG) TH(RAZERDD
R(ERBBF (LX) RO (FELERE
THRE) R(PEARKMBARRF AMFRE
R RE - BERERMNTIESAERET
KogHIS T - HAEHIEZEABBES -
IR ABRTRE R E BB ANFEK - B
HERET - ZMRREBFELRERS N
HRAXM - BREEENSIAE TIEFH
AEBTTNEREHNBRIAB THTIE
ANE  HH M TREEEME - REETHE
& fARsRHIEE T -



For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to preventing
child and forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has always been placing great emphasis on product
quality to protect the interests of our clients. As supplier and
contractor management is a crucial component of the Group’s
quality control, the Group stringently manage suppliers and
sub-contractors to avoid any inferior materials acquired and
adopt strict quality control over the production and construction
process. We collaborate with suppliers, service providers, material
manufacturers and sub-contractors who share our goals in
responsible management of business ethics, quality, safety, labour,
environment management in order to provide the best solutions to
our clients.

Through the implementation of a robust procurement and
tendering mechanism, we select reliable and competent business
partners from potential organisations in adherence to the principle
of equal opportunity and fair competition. In respect of suppliers or
sub-contractors selection, a list of approved suppliers is in place
and we will only select suppliers and appoint sub-contractors
from this approved list unless individually reviewed and approved
by management or specifically requested by the client.

Looking forward, the Group aims to promote local economic
development and reduce carbon footprint, by prioritising local
suppliers by shortening the distance of transportation. In addition
to geographical factors, we expect our suppliers to meet the
requirements including but not limited areas such as child or
forced labour, health and safety, working hours, discrimination and
disciplinary processes.
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During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by
geographical region of the Group was as follows:

Asia (Except Hong Kong and the PRC)

TN (FBRFEBS)  Europe
1 B
The PRC 2
i

10

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

To meet the demand of our clients, the Group has developed its
internal management system and closely monitored its project
execution process, with an aim to render premium and reliable
service to our clients.

In our prefabricated construction business, we have established
and implemented a quality management system (“QMS”) in our
operations, which is a conformity with internationally recognised
ISO 9001:2015 standard certified by Fugro Certification Services
Limited. This system helps us to comply with the relevant laws,
regulations and contract obligations that are applicable to our
products and services; control the quality issues systematically
to enhance our customers’ satisfaction as well as continuously
improve quality performance in our operations. The Group also
provides adequate training to all levels of employees to raise their
awareness of QMS in their responsible tasks. On the other hand,
the design, production and supply of our product, Ready Mixed
Concrete, has obtained the Quality Scheme for the Production
and Supply of Concrete (“QSPSC”) under the Hong Kong Quiality
Assurance Agency, which is also certified by Fugro Certification
Services Limited.
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During the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our customers arising from the quality issues of the work
performed either by us or sub-contractors, which in the view of
Directors, is attributable to the effective quality control measures.

In our ordinary course of business, we hardly get access to the
personal information of our clients or confidential of enterprises.
However, we attach great attention to the protection of privacy
and intellectual property. In compliance with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486), Laws of Hong Kong, we ensure
that all the collected business data from our clients will be treated
as strictly confidential and properly dealt with by our staff. Our
clients’ data can only be assessed by designated personnel to
prevent information leakage to unauthorised persons or parties.

Relating to respecting intellectual property, employees should
also refrain from having unlicensed computer software on their
computers at the workplace. The Group complies with the
intellectual property (the “IP”) right regulations to protect the
interest of the Group and our clients and requires our suppliers to
comply with the IP rights for confidentiality and integrity.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating products
and services provided and methods of redress.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We believe in fairness and honesty in business dealing and we
do not tolerate corruption, bribery, money-laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of our business
operations. The Group strictly adhere to relevant regulations and
laws, such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201),
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Cap. 615), Laws of Hong Kong, and the Criminal Law
of the PRC.
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To facilitate identification of suspected cases of corruption,
money laundering and other misconducts, the Group has
developed a Whistle-Blowing Policy and stated in the staff
handbook. Employees are prohibited from accepting or offering
any advantages, including but not limited to rewards, gifts,
fees, loans, services, from or to any clients, suppliers or person
having a business relationship with the Group. In the event that
they identify any irregularities, staff may report to relevant senior
management, and we will protect the identity of the informer.
Detailed investigation on the reported event shall be conducted
followed by appropriate actions according to the result.

The tendering process is vital to our business and all tendering
documents are kept confidential and restricted to concerned
parties only. It must be done in a fair manner in order to protect
the interest of the Group and our clients. Employees responsible
for tendering must comply with the Competition Ordinance (Cap.
619), Laws of Hong Kong, refraining themselves exchanging
or communicating any sensitive information with competitors,
participating in price fixing, imposing restrictions on clients and
abusing the dominant market position.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not
aware of any cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

At Glory Flame, we sincerely believe that our growth is closely tied
to our surrounding community and the environment. Together with
fulfiling corporate social responsibility in our daily operations, the
Group also proactively participates in social welfare activities and
donations.

In March 2018, the Group has donated to the Hong Kong General
Building Contractors Association to support the development of
construction industry.

The Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best practices

related to environmental protection at construction sites, and
workers’ health and safety.
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In June 2018, the Group has sponsored the Photalkgraphers
Charitable Photo Exhibition. Photos will be auctioned, and all
proceeds will be donated to support Lifewire cases and people in
need, as well as raising public awareness on rare diseases.

We also encourage employees to actively participate in community
and voluntary work to further the benefits of local communities
and render assistance to the needy. Meanwhile, the Group has
strengthened its ties and ensured continuous communication
with members of the community where it operates, in an effort to
advocate a caring and serving spirit.

During the Reporting Period, our community engagement services
mainly focused on contributing in youth development.

Ecological LED Cultivation Cabinet System and
Hydroponic Products

In the contemporary society, food safety has become an
increasing concern for the urban population. The Group is
committed to cultivating high-quality, pollution-free vegetables
and bringing them into families. During the Reporting Period, the
Group primarily made sales of planting racks through distributors
and leasing of planting racks to the hot-pot restaurants
providing on-site planting and supply of fresh vegetables for their
customers.

In the hope of building a sustainable society, we have participated
in a series of competitions and exhibitions during the year to
promote the concept of green agriculture and green construction
to the public.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

Air Emissions

RABERE

EERHEM
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) REY (NOW tonne &
Sulphur Oxide (SO,) ma ¥ (SO kg T2

29.16
145.73

GHG Emissions

2018

BERBHN

Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)

HERERBHMRRE (588 1)

GHG emissions from mobile Carbon Dioxide (CO»)
combustion sources —&1khx (CO»)
TRENR IR B)R ERESHEA Methane (CH.)
ke (CH.)
Nitrous oxide (N20)

S/eER (NO)

Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)

REREEGER (85I 2)

Electricity purchased from Carbon Dioxide (CO»)
power companies —& ki (CO2)

WNENARBEEZEN

Gas purchased from Towngas Carbon Dioxide (CO»)

HREERARBENER —& ki (CO2)

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)

HitfE g (88 3)

Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO)

PUEE R R B 7 REAR —&ftHR (CO»)

Electricity used for processing Carbon Dioxide (COx)
fresh water and sewage —&fbix (CO.)

by government department
HATELFIE A E N RIBRK KR
YK P S B R = R EEHE

Business air travel by employees Carbon Dioxide (COx)
18 BRAREEINAE —&1khx (CO»)

tonne
7

kg
T

tonne
07}

kg
T

tonne
1A

—B-N\F

105.05

82.05

6.89

41.54

90.68

2.79

122.11

5.43

104.27

74.07

6.60

36.81

15.60

1.91

139.04

9.71

66 GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EEZEREBRAT



ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - g REAWE

Resources Consumption

BRERE

Electricity Consumption HEES kWh 65,616.46 583,704.00
TRk
kWh/employee 428.87 419.56
TEE B8

Gas Consumption HRE MJ 7,254.00 1,248.00
KEFH
MJ/employee 7.41 9.75
KEEEE

Water Consumption AkE m° 171.38 161.00
m?*/employee 1.12 1.26
SNEKR’E

Construction waste intensity SRS tonne/construction site 1.18 2.62
WA, T3
Construction waste EEREEY) tonne M 2,150.70 4,753.30

Total Workforce  Total Workforce

No. of People No. of People
in 2018 in 2017
BTHAH BT 4%
—g-\f  —T—tF
A AEK
By Gender ZERIE D
Male S 125 92
Female e 28 36
By Age Group RERAR B D
18 — 30 years old 18 & 30 % 21 35
31 - 40 years old 31 = 40 5% 36 37
41 - 50 years old 41 2= 50 5%, 44 24
51 - 60 years old 51 £ 60 5% 36 22
Over 60 years old 60 B L 16 10
By Geographical Region Rt EE D
Hong Kong B 72 76
The PRC =8 81 52
By Employee Category REEERE D
Senior Management SREEE 18 24
Middle Management R EIRE 17 16
Entry Level VIFET 118 88
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Employment Turnover Employment Turnover
in 2018 in 2017
—E- \FREREAER —E—tFREERKER
No. of Turnover No. of Turnover
People Rate People Rate
A mKE AEL MR R
By Gender g dzlE-lbs)
Male S 47 38% 14 15%
Female g 21 75% 5 14%
By Age Group BFERARE D
18 — 30 years old 18 & 30 5% 18 86% 9 26%
31— 40 years old 31 £ 40 5% 29 80% 5 14%
41 - 50 years old 41 250 5% 13 30% 3 13%
51 - 60 years old 51 & 60 5% 8 22% 2 9%
Over 60 years old 60 AL 0 0% 0 0%
By Geographical Region BiEE S
Hong Kong BB 17 24% 10 13%
The PRC o] 51 63% 9 17%
Average Average
training hours training hours
completed completed
in 2018 in 2017
No. of Hours No. of Hours
—E-N\F ZE—+F
FHE T FIIE TR
bE 13 IS
AN AN
By Gender RIERIE D
Male B 1.42 4.34
Female M 0.25 0.58
By Category RERE D
Senior Management SMEIERE 1.78 0.29
Middle Management RARERE 0.82 1.25
Entry Level WRET 1.17 4.47
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Percentage of Percentage of
employees employees
being trained being trained
in 2018 in 2017
Rate Rate
—2-N\F e
ZHiES ZHlEE
Aotk Aotk
b= b=
By Gender BRI D
Male B4 18% 42%
Female 7 7% 5%
By Category RERE D
Senior Management SRERE 11% 4%
Middle Management PREEE 12% 0%
Entry Level VIFET 18% 45%

Number of Suppliers

by Geographical Region EBiEE 5N HEREE

Hong Kong &5 67 72
The PRC H 10 7
Asia (except Hong Kong Tl (BABRFRBERRIN

and the PRC) 1 2
Europe B 2 3
North America IS 0 1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RIR - 8 RERARESD
GOVERNANCE CONTENT INDEX

This report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Z&N#R& HIEEESBH AL ZHMBER QT B
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 20 % tH R B 2208 [3R 35 ~ & MEA
to the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock &3] ] RE - TREMIESIR T E&HE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The following table provides 8 T~ [E /& [ A — #% 1% 58 N 8 52 48 WU 12
and overview of the general disclosures and key performance ([KPlIs]) @ W& 7|$REBEEHL R 2 Z60
indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects under each subject area,  S(IR{EEESNRAR ©

which are either cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the

Report or supplementing the Report with additional information.

Description Reference
it sE

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
EBEA1: Y

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; Protecting the
—RIEE and (b) compliance with relevant Environment
laws and regulations that have a IREIRIE
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
BRHEERIRERBBEN - MKk
TS - BEREFEEDN
EAEEH ¢ (@B &) ETHE
TABERZENEER NN
HE RS o

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and Emissions
BREN respective emissions data. BERR
BEEA1A PerniE $ AR A HE IR o
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Reference Remark

2% -3

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
BEA1 : HBY

KPI A1.2

BREN
BEAL2

KPI A1.3
BREN
EEA13

KPI A1.4
BARAR
ERA1L4

KPI A1.5
BREN
IBEA15

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BERBATNE (UBEETE) Kk
(WEf) BE (MABESEA -
BIERBTE) °

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FESXEEREEDHEE (UEE)
K (ER) BE (MABESSE
iz - BIERMETHE) o

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FESEEREEDHES (UNEE)
K (WER) BE (MABEEE
fir - SBRHEHE) -

Description of measures to mitigate

emissions and results achieved.

HAUREBERE VIR IE R TSGR o

Emissions

HER

N/A We do not generate

TEMA hazardous waste in our
operations.
BMERER I REES
EREEY -

Waste Management

EEYE IR

Waste Management

e
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Description

i

ENVIRONMENTAL
RBE

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
EEA1 : B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and
BREN non-hazardous wastes are handled,
EEA1.6 reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEEERESEEYNS
% BIRELENEIERAEKR -
Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EBEA2: EREA

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of

—RIRE resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.
BREREIR (BHELIR - KRHEM
JRAEL) BIBUR

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy
BAREN consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
EEA21 gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and

intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RIS DNERE R SEEER
(E - smeol) #REE ATET
REHE) REE (MABEES
iz ~ FIERMEAE) ©

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and
REGRRAEN intensity (e.g. per unit of production
EEA2.2 volume, per facility).

BFOKE RS (MASEE B
SER ) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency
BAREEN initiatives and results achieved.
EEA2.3 faatBE IR B A a5t 81 R PT1SACR o
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Waste Management
REYE IR

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources

BIRER

Use of Resources

BIRER

Remark
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% B

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES

BEA2: EREAR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any Use of Resources The Group encounters no
BAREN issue in sourcing water that is fit for & JR{E A issue in sourcing water that
iEEA24 purpose, water efficiency initiatives is fit for purpose.
and results achieved. REERKEUERKIR
i SRERGE A 7R = RI A& (2RI RAEEAIERE o
78 - DA RIRF Ak E T B R A1
e
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for N/A We do not generate
BAEEN finished products (in tonnes) and, if i A significant packaging
IEEA25 applicable, with reference to per unit material waste in our
produced. operations.
XA BEEMEHEE (CANES BMEEETR I REELS
B) R (ER) SEEBLLEE - REEMEIEEY -

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
BHEAS : RIERRXRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s Environment and
—REE significant impact on the environment  Natural Resources
and natural resources. RIERRAER

KT ABIRIE R R A ERIEK
EAFENBRK -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts  Environment and
BREN of activities on the environment and Natural Resources
IEZEA3.1 natural resources and the actions RIEN KAER

taken to manage them.

R RS RBEIRE R RAE R
BEAFENERNERRRATEN
178 o
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Description
iR

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

[EEB1: EfE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and

—RIRE

KPI B1.1
BREN
EEZB1.1

KPI B1.2
BREN
5 B1.2

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hour, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti- discrimination, other
benefits and welfare.
BERFHM L iwE  BREEES - T
eSS - RE - TEHE ST
1t~ RIBR AR E A5 S RABTE
@K : k(o) BFHETABEKR
FENREERLROINER -

Total workforce by gender
employment type, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - BEEE - SR Rt
BEIDMEERE -

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region.
RIER - FEE R KR E 5 e

BmARHE o
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Employment and
Labour Practices
ERERSETER

Employment and
Labour Practices —
Staff Composition
EBERSLEIER-BT
159

Employment and
Labour Practices —
Staff Turnover
EBERSTIER-BT
i

Remark
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% B

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EHEB2: @ERZE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; Health and Safety
—RIHE and (b) compliance with relevant fEREEZT S

laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employee from occupational
hazards.
BERELZ 2 TIERBERIRERE
BRBEEREED  @BEK k()
BTHETAREATENERE

BENMABIEER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety
BREN fatalities. BEHEZ S
EEB2.1 ETERREMETHIABURLLE -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BREN EITBEATIERS - e
EEB2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health Health and Safety
RBREN and safety measures adopted, fERETE
¥ B2.3 how they are implemented and

monitored.

WA B R R 2
e - ARARBAITRER T -
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Description
iR

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

FEE B3 : & KIEH

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’

—RIRE

KPI B3.1
BREN
154ZB3.1

KPI B3.2
BREN
{51 B3.2

knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description for
training activities.

AR EE BT LIERENANH
NMERRERVBER - FUBINEED

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category.
RIERIREEERIZI D HXIES
B °

The average training hours
completed per employee gender
and employee category.
RUERIREEERIZD - BRESR
TER I T EIRF R

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

[EHE B4 : 3 T#A|

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies;

—RIRE

and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BEM IEE T 358 %155 TH) © (@)K
R RO)ETHETAREATE
BMRRER MR DI EF -
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Development and
Training

R K IE

Development and
Training

R K aE

Labour Standards
AT R
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% B

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
[EHE B4 : 3 T#A|

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards
RAREN employment practices to avoid child &% T %8|
51 B4.1 and forced labour.

Rt S BRI E B e AR R B

TREHBT -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to Labour Standards
R AN eliminate such practices when 4 TR
51EB4.2 discovered.

R EERER B ERERIE

SUPTERER ) A8 o

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental  Supply Chain
—RIEE and social risks of the supply chain.  Management
BRHEEENIRERTSRARECEE o HEEERE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical  Supply Chain
RERAEN region. Management
{5 B5.1 i@ E H R EREA - HEEER
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain
BREN to engaging suppliers, number of Management
$51EB5.2 suppliers where the practices are HrEsEE IR

being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Rt B RN B FER eV B - (A
WITEBENNHEEREE - AR
BREABONMITRERTE -
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Description Reference Remark
it 2% i E
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

EBREZIER

Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[EEB6 : EmMEIE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Product Responsibility
— R E (o) compliance with relevant laws and  E R EF
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
B AR E m ARG iR R B &
2 EE BEAMEBEEAKLAE
FITER (@) BUR © R (o) BT E 3
TTABERTZENRBEER LR

BB R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage to total products sold or ~ N/A There were no recalls
BREN shipped subject to recalls for safety g F concerning the provision.
$51ZB6.1 and health reasons. WEABEL SR Bk E
EENEEXERAETRL N %o
EEREHMARKNBE DL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service N/A There were no validated
BAREN related complaints received how @ complaints received during
1542 B6.2 they are dealt with. the reporting review period.
BRI 2 m MRS R AR B B LA & C A - IR
RIEE T - BAERKERBE R °
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product Responsibility
BAREN observing and protecting intellectual & & (T
151£B6.3 property rights.
i it B T 2 AR PE NG EE R B Y
1BHl -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance N/A Recall procedures are not
BREN process and recall procedures. TNE A relevant to our operations.
51 B6.4 S ST B2 R E @B o O] 2 Fr ER R AT A e 8 A
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Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[EEB6 : EmMEIE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data
RAREN protection and privacy policies,
{5¥ZB6.5 how they are implemented and

monitored.
8 8 E B RHRE RALBBUR -
ARABRAENTT R EEE 50K ©
Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies: and

—RIEE (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that they have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
BRYIERREE - BR - BGFROER
B @BGR - R (o) BTHEITA
BEAZENEREZNRNINE
£ e

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcome of the cases.

PR SREAA 31T A S E B B 1R
W EBENESHARMTHEA &

KPI B7.1

BARAM
EEBT7.1

KPI B7.2
BARAR
& BT7.2

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

F s Py Eh 4 b N SR ERAR - A KA
BT RERTE -
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Remark

Reference
sz

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-Corruption
R&ES

Anti-Corruption
R&ES

Anti-Corruption
RES
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Description
iR

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement

—RIRE

KPI B8.1
BREN
154ZB8.1

KPI B8.2

BREN
{515 B8.2

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRI R ER T L EMREL
BEREENMEREER TS ZEI
B M ER HIBUR ©

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ErERERE (nHE BREH
BIFR - f#E Xk 8F) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money
or time) to the focus area.
EEIEHBFABAER (N EHE
) o
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Giving Back to the
Community
E):pad

Giving Back to the
Community

(O] S 4t [

Giving Back to the
Community

(O] S 4t [

Remark
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in (i) provision of construction services and
building materials supply, (i) development and sales of agricultural
equipment, (iii) trading of clean coal and others and (iv) provision
of financial services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a
business review and an indication of likely future developments
in the businesses of the Group, can be found in the Chairman’s
statement and Management Discussion and Analysis as set out in
this annual report. These discussions form part of this directors’
report.

ENVIORNMENT POLICIES, PERFORMANCE
AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Details of Environmental Policies, performance and compliance
with laws and regulations are set out in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” in this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognizes that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development of
the Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship
with its employees and business partners and improving the
quality of services to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably
remunerated and regular training courses are provided for its
workers on different types of skills and knowledge for their specific
jobs in the workplace as well as work safety. The Group strives to
motivate its employees with a clear career path and opportunities
for advancement and improvement of their skills.

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

EEEWE

EZeMARERENNFRLERZXER
MERE -

op

ETBRRHK

RARBREZRAR - HMBARIESH
= () IREHEERS RAEFMEHERE - (i) B3
MEERERE (N BEEFRENREME (v)
RS BARTS -

E 3y AE) ]

HZEXRGNE—FTmEoN (BREAKE
MRS R S AR B R BE R R E R A FETR)
AT AR F i E S & B E & iR B
EH o ZEImBAAESEREN 8D °

RIBEBUR - BITRESEERAH

BRRBER - BITRETARE MBI
BRIINANER [RE - @ REAME ]

BES  FFRHEFANEERRE

EERNER  BEFEEBBHRAKER
BEROBR AEERHIREEREERE
BN BRI ET REIZRERARSER
HTFEPHRFEEE -

BERGAA/AKSESRREZLZHAEEE
7E o AEERRME 8 TRSS RN
BTrAR TEEUMBNTRBIREE
AR TR 2R 8 TRMHEE HIFIIR
12 o ARBHAIRNBE BRI MEE BRI
BT RS B R OIS

Annual Report 2018 fF %




82

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FERWE

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers
and has ongoing communication with the customers and
suppliers through various channels such as telephone, electronic
mails and physical meetings to obtain their feedback and
suggestions.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Reporting Period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

As the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 6 June
2019 (Thursday), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 3 June 2019 (Monday) to 6 June 2019 (Thursday)
(both days inclusive) for the said AGM or any adjournment thereof.
All transfer of the Company’s shares together with relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office no later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 May
2019 (Friday) in order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at
the AGM (or any adjournment thereof). The share registrar and
transfer office is at:

Address: Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B, 21/F
148 Electric Road, North Point
Hong Kong

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the five financial years are set out in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 and details of the acquisition of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December
2018 was 1,010,605,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital and the share premium
of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in note
28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group. The
remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference to
the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities
and duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

RESERVES

Details of the reserve of the Group are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution, as calculated under the provision of section
79B of the Companies Ordinance, and in accordance with the
Companies Law Cap. 22 of Cayman Islands, was approximately
HK$94.6 million (2017: approximately HK$231.5 million) inclusive
of share premium, share-based payment reserve, special reserve
and retained earnings/accumulated losses.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FERRE

B B8 2 7]

KRB EEMBARR_ZE—NFE+_A
=T —BMERERBREHAREENE AT
M BEHN AN F RS P BREMF 11 &
34 o

BRAR R =E

RZE-—N\F+_A=+—H KRRZ#
1TIRA428/%1,010,605,000 i & AX I 1E.0.01
FBTCH)E R o

ARRBIPAR R B s BRI E AN ZE S F
RN ARG A R 5K RE28 )2 29 -

EEFMBCR

HINEZ BT minst AN B 2 BB R KX
SEMBEENSREE AR ZHBREN
R - ERFHMHE2EBLELE W
EEF R IBAEMEEEATREETE

G

AEENFBFIBRRAFROGRE RS
Bk o

RZE—N\FE+_A=+—8  ERBAA
BOIETBEMNEXFE  BREFASHS
EBIE22F R AENEAR R R A 5K & 7
1 #) /94,600,000 7L (ZZT—tF: 4
231,500,000/ 7T) © BiERDEE - LUkH
BEM 2 NREE - BRREERRBAERN
ZFEEE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 2 August 2014 (the “Date of
Adoption”) are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. The Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years commencing on the Date of Adoption
and shall expire at the close of business on the business day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide addional incentive to employees
(full-time and part-time), Directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents customers, business
partners and services providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
Director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier,
agent, customer, business partner or services provider of the
Group, options to subscribe for such number of shares of the
Company as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme. The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of
any option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may
be, the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time
on the basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAHE

RS

RZZ—MENAZR ([FRHBBH]) Rne
AATIRERREA S ([ZETE ) FBENAE
WS ISR TE 30 » FZAt B RERM
BHE BEFTFAER  BRIFERRAE
FEARRABREREL - BRIRNERZE
Eim T BEFRIE S H R KSR E W o

ZET B E ARSI RIRBEREFHAR - @A
SEES (2BRER) EF #B@A
B oiEE AR fER REF
F - BEBHERGHERIRMERINER A
KB AR BER AN A -

ExgnaRRBRERREANER [
AEBETAREE (2RERB)  BF - W
AREMA - A KEEAEERE - A%
BEToHE - ABE - HEr K2 F
F - BEBHIRBHERRDBERE &
mEAREZT NGRS RBEEST SRR
EHENARARD - EFE (SBLIFH
TES GERAME) Al NERERER 2 R
EHAREEERRSIERAEL A RELN
BERUREREBRIESRENELR -



As at 31 December 2018, the number of outstanding share
options under the Scheme is 16,306,050 options, representing
1.61% of the total issued Shares. The details of movements in
shares options under Scheme during the Reporting Period are set
out below:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEERE

RZE—-NFE+_A=+—H8 " Z%:TEET

W ARITEBIAEEE 516,306,050 (A&
BB BTN 1.61% » PNEREHI RN LT 2|
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Number of
share options
BREEE
Outstanding shares option RZE—-N\F—H—H
as at 1 January 2018 M ARITE RS AR 47,269,000
Granted during the year FAFRL 101,060,500
Exercised during the year FANTTEE -
Cancelled during the year FNFEHE (132,023,450)
Lapsed during the year FRKK -
Outstanding shares option RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 1) AR 1 TS0 A AR 16,306,050

The maximum number of entitlement to Shares of each
grantee under the Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of the issued Shares. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to our Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant of the option.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director

Mr. Zhu Zhou (Chairman)
(appointed on 19 September 2018)
Ms. Jiao Fei
Ms. Che Xiaoyan (Chairman)
(resigned on 24 August 2018)
Mr. Li Shunmin (Vice chairman)
(resigned on 13 August 2018)
Mr. Guan Jincheng (resigned on 13 August 2018)
Mr. Man Wai Lun (resigned on 19 September 2018)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Note)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lin Hongtong (resigned on 24 August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Kam Wah
Mr. Liu Yingjie (@appointed on 19 September 2018)

Mr. Cao Hongmin (appointed on 22 January 2019)

Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on 13 September 2018
and resigned on 22 January 2019)
Mr. Bai Honghai (resigned on 13 September 2018)
Mr. Li An Sheng (resigned on 6 September 2018)
Mr. Chen Yongquan (resigned on 6 September 2018)
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Note:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung”) was appointed as independent non-
executive Director on 24 January 2018 and re-designated as executive
Director on 2 August 2018. Mr. Chung then resigned as executive Director
on 19 September 2018.

The incumbent Directors’ biographical details are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

Information regarding directors’ emoluments is set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation. All Directors of the Company
were appointed for a fixed period but subject to retirement from
office and re-election at the AGM of the Company in accordance
with the Articles.

Each of the executive Directors shall also be entitled to
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board based on,
among other things, the performance of the individual directors
and the overall financial position of the Group, and is subject
to the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2018, interests or short positions of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company in the shares
(the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or (ii) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Long Position in the Shares and underlying Shares

EERE

A EEREFBRTHRAEREALQFARHE
MECEERD - BERD R EER
KR MR

RZZE—N\FE+-_A=1+—H KRBE=H
HFEZITHRABRARGI K EBEEE (F
EABBEOESTI EEHRAE KRG ([#
HZREEHG) BEXVELD a9kt ([RE])
RN REREEZREE (\REEFRBE
IEBIZEXVERE 7 k8D BhAME AN 7 KB
RFTHEz AR (BIEREES LAEK
PIEBIE X SR EIERIEEA R R
WA 2 (i) IRIBEE S K B E 515 352 &%
SR ZAIEHI ATt B R AR MR R - 3K (i)
BIEGEM E TR AIE 546 2567 KBNS
RNAR R Z TR R AR INT ¢

(i) RROREERDNTE

Number of Shares
and underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature held/interested in shareholding
s HEEEENRG B
BEEnA B,/ HE RiEBERGOEE ERESH
Zhu Zhou Beneficial owner 269,000,000 26.62%
KM EnEBA
(i) Short Position (i) %A

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
or the chief executive nor their associates had any
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2018 and
so far as is known to the Directors, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register of substantial Shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group.
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10% sk A EROHERS o

Number of Shares Approximate
and underlying Shares  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature held/interested in shareholding
R BEEENRG B

REREE B ME REBRGEE BHRED

Huang Cheng Beneficial owner 188,620,000 18.66%

=K EnEEA

Zhou Jin Beneficial owner 144,500,000 14.30%

Zhou Jin EmBEAA
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 47.8% (2017: approximately 47.4%)
of the total revenue of the Group and the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 15.6% (2017: approximately
15.8%) of the total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35.6% (2017: approximately 65.0%)
of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier of the
Group accounted for approximately 10.9% (2017 approximately
28.9%) of the total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

MAJOR SUBCONTRACTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 70.6% (2017:
approximately 71.6%) of the total subcontracting of the Group
and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted for
approximately 20.0% (2017: approximately 23.3%) of the total
purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules), or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest subcontractors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interests directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuity connected transaction”
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and are fully
exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them have
confirmed that neither themselves nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had held any
position or had interest in any businesses or companies that
were or might be competing with the business of the Group, or
gave rise to any concern regarding conflict of interests during the
Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code except for the
deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and E.1.2 of the Code
which are explained in the section headed “Compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code” of the Corporate Governance
Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the required standards of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors in respect
of the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”). Having
made specific enquiries with the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Reporting
Period. The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its
Directors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of important events affecting the Group after the end of
the Reporting Period are set out in the paragraph headed “Events
after the Reporting Period” in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on information
that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25% of the
Company’s issued share capital were held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA") was the
auditor of the Company, which shall retire in the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Zhu Zhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEZERAERAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory
Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to
179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and other receivables
for recoverability. This recoverability review is significant to our
audit because the balance of trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$65,727,000 as at 31 December 2018 is
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’s recoverability review involves application of judgement
and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to customers and debtors;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers and debtors;

— Evaluating the Group’s recoverability assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers and debtors;

= Checking subsequent settlements from the customers and
debtors; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s recoverability review for trade and
other receivables is supported by the available evidence.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B IZBEN RS

REEXER
FAREBZSFA/BENEXHED %ﬁ$
%é%ﬁﬁ%$?§xm$ﬁ ENE

%%%ﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% %E&%%ﬁ
RER MISREEFTHREFERER

B 5 R EEBWRRRIE

A2 BER A M RA MR 21

EXEEHESREMERFIESEZ TRE
REETAS - AlkBR2EREREHIEN
HERETEZEIALEEE AREEC=T
—N\F+-—A=+—HHESHREMERR
TE#E#24765,727,000 8 T AR A SRR E
ERED - B BEEBEZ AIREIRREAIR
w2 FEAN MG AERE -

EERAZEMEFEE (AT eE)

- i ERERTEPRERAGER
EREEHRZIERF

- 2B EREEEZPRERAZBERE
RphE
- Bl BEREZTREORERME

- RBEEBZREK

- REEPRERAZER

- BRHETPRERAZHREEEE Rk

- Y EKEAEXK
[\ B

EMBHRREMER

A3

LERE BEEEREFIREMEWR
AREREEEEERELF -

=l

Annual Report 2018 £ %

95



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B IZEEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO5988

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF | 4R & 182

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER | K& E b2 EIW AR
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | ##=% /¥ =A=1mauwss

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018
—E-N\F
Notes HK$’000
BiEE FERT
Revenue WA 7 133,631 183,283
Cost of sales SHE AR (105,088) (154,632)
Gross profit EF 28,543 28,651
Other income and other gains H A A R H b Y a5 ok B 18
or losses 8 602 28,661
(Loss)/gain on investments at BRATVTEGFABR ZKE
fair value through profit or loss (Et8) s (35,651) 51,372
Share-based payments PARSAD B 7 3k (20,798) (19,080)
Fair value gain on contingent FARE A FERE
consideration - 21,889
Impairment losses on various assets & I8& EHH{EE B (104,302) (21,994
Administrative and other operating TTER R B & 8 A S
expenses (64,811) (70,645)
Operating (loss)/profit 2E (BR) uR (196,417) 18,854
Finance costs R Eip®N 10 (3,000) (2,006)
(Loss)/profit before income tax PRATEBIAT (BER) &F (199,417) 16,848
Income tax FriS#i 12 (164) (1,016)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (FBE) %R 13 (199,581) 15,832
Other comprehensive Htb2mE (BB WA
(loss)/income:
Item that may be reclassified to BEEHIAEBHNEE .
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating HEBINEENELY ER
foreign operations (3,220) 361
Total other comprehensive FEREMEE (FE)
(loss)/income for the year LNt (3,220) 361
Total comprehensive FREHE (FE)
(loss)/income for the year ON (202,801) 16,193
(Loss)/profit for the year MTFATEAEFER
attributable to: (E518) &# -
Owners of the Company iN/NCIE: V=N (194,804) 18,138
Non-controlling interests IR (4,777) (2,306)
(199,581) 15,832
Total comprehensive NTFATEMEREZER
(loss)/income for the year (F58) WAL
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RABHEB A (198,507) 18,535
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE S (4,294) (2,342)
(202,801) 16,193
(Loss)/earnings per share g8 (B8 &R 16
Basic (cents per share) AR (GBIER) (19.93) 2.18
Diluted (cents per share) BE (BILER) (19.93) 2.18
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CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬁﬁkﬂﬁ)ﬂ%
STATEMENT OF | #=%/#t=A=t-r

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(= FExT T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEME 17 16,529 19,283
Goodwill = 18 2,877 32,694
Intangible assets B EE 19 - 4,410
19,406 56,387
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 20 6,048 2,687
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A FEUGR 21 65,727 149,247
Investments at fair value through NS = N =F+ Z&ﬁ
profit or loss 22 - 51,030
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S8R 23 39,169 35,008
Tax receivable FEUFR IR = 1,173
110,944 239,140
Disposal group classified as SEAFEFLEZ
held for sale BB 5= = 24 31,128 -
142,072 239,140
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E et IE 25 17,064 13,266
Other loan EMER 26 40,000 40,000
Tax payable AN 232 -
57,296 53,266
Liabilities directly associated with BEESBARBEFLHE
disposal group classified as ZHBEEEEHE A&
held for sale 24 13 -
57,309 53,266
Net current assets REBEEFE 84,763 185,874
Total assets less current liabilities R2EERABEE 104,169 242 261
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CONSOLIDATED | 454 B F§ AR &
STATEM ENT OF R=F-NF+-A=+—H

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018

2018 2017
=F-NF T LtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE FHET AT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE 27 83 915
33 915
NET ASSETS BEEFE 104,136 241,346
Capital and reserves BERKEHE
Share capital f& 2K 28 10,106 9,297
Reserves EA 94,091 232,969
Equity attributable to owners RAFIHE AEERER
of the Company 104,197 242,266
Non-controlling interests AR i (61) (920)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 104,136 241,346

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 179 were F 98 E 179 B Z A M BHMERENR 2T —N
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  F = A =+ L HEZEE gt RIZ#E I

29 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIESKEREE
Zhu Zhou Chan Kam Wah
M PRE®EE
Director Director
EZE EE
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

= A 45

wIN 4

N
L\ man
jannk

BE-T-\F+-A=T

29)

7
L5

B

ALTEEAERL
Foreign
Share-based  currency Non-
Share Share Merger ~ payment translation Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HRAXH HE
Bx  ROEE  AKRRE EzRE  AEER  HbEE  RifEE &t FERER 4Rs
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKB0O0  HKS000  HKSO000
Tin T Thn i AT T Tin Tin T T
Balanceat{January 2017 W=F-t%-F-B&% 760 172 1580 1187 17 - o7y 111,18 085 110203
Total comprehensive income  £R2EM L2
for the year - - - - 397 - 18,138 18,53 (2342 16,193
Acquistion of a subsidiary ~ WEHEAR - - - - - - - - 68 68
Further acauiston of E-ShEREL
a subsidiary - - - - - (1672 - (1672 1672 -
Issus of shares on placement - EER BN 809 38,201 - - - - - 39,030 - 39,030
Issue of shares upon exercise - R{TEBRERL RN
of share options 888 74,629 - (19412 - - - 56,106 - 56,106
Share-based payments  MRIRAT 2308 - - - 19,080 - - - 19,080 - 19,080
Capta inection from FARERLE
non-conroling interests - - - - - - - - 667 667
Lapse of share options BRERH - - - (248) - - %8 - - -
Balance at R-B-tf
31 December 2017 t2A=+-BEs 9297 230,122 15,800 10,707 414 (1672) (22.402) 242,266 920) 241,346
Balance at{ January 2018  W-Z-NE-B-BEE 9207 2012 15800 10,07 414 (1670 (2409 240266 (020 241346
Total comprehensieloss  ER2EEBLE
for the year - = - - (3,709 - (194804 (198507) (4204 (202801)
Acquistion of a subsidiary ~ WEHBAF - - - - - - - - 5,153 5,153
Issue of shares on placement  )EE R A& 809 38,831 - - - - - 39,640 - 30,640
Share-hased payments DRAE 7z 5E - - - 20,798 - - - 20,798 - 20,798
Cancellation of share options B R sk & - - - (26,741) - - 26,74 - - -
Balance at RZE-NE
31 December 2018 tZR=t-REH 10,106 268,953 15,800 4,764 (3,269) (1672 (190465 104,197 (61) 104,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT | 42 &8 IB &=
OF CASH FLOWS | #2=%/\Ft=A=t-fit7

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from
operating activities

Notes

B aE

RETDRERSRE

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
FEx

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATSELAT (B518) aF (199,417) 16,848
Adjustments for: AT AR .
Depreciation of property, VI - BB MR

plant and equipment 8,652 6,618
Amortisation of intangible assets WEHEELEE 1,470 1,470
Interest income FEWA (7) @)
Loss/(gain) on investments b7/ EFTE.#)\?E Z?xé

at fair value through profit or loss ZEE ( 35,651 (51,372)
Reversal of impairment loss on ﬁé‘@%ﬁ%&ﬁ@%%ﬁklﬁ

trade and other receivables ZREEE (93) (28,034)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYIE - R /%& P

plant and equipment EiE (s 193 (30)
Share-based payments JJA%T%FZ%;%E@ZH?X 20,798 19,080
Fair value gain on contingent FAREZ AT EREZE

consideration — (21,889
Written-off of property, ME - BE R

plant and equipment 835 3,432
Impairment losses on various assets B IBEE 7 FEEIE 104,302 21,994
Interest expenses B 3,000 2,006
Operating loss before EEESHBAIKERE

working capital changes (24,616) (29,879)
Change in inventories FEIEE (1,430) (2,410)
Change in trade and other receivables ‘& 5 & E i & W 2k I8 3835, (5,279) (18,652)
Change in investments at fair value BATFEFAER

through profit or loss ZIE LR, 15,379 342
Change in trade and other payables 2 5 & H fth fE < OB IL R (847) (8,071)
Net cash used in operations KEFTARIR SR (16,793) (58,670)
Income tax paid BERETSH 612 (2,674)
Net cash used in RETHFANREEE

operating activities (16,181) (61,344)
Cash flows from REFZHMEBRERE

investing activities
Purchases of property, BEYHE  WEAZE

plant and equipment (8,631) (12,670)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - Fﬁ}?’; N5

plant and equipment B P15 FRIE 877 30
Acquisition of a subsidiary W HERT B A i (8,410) (1,880)
Interest received BUF S 7 2
Net cash used in RETEFMARSEE

investing activities (16,157) (14,518)
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Cash flows from
financing activities

Notes

B aE

BMEFHRERERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

n/\ fﬁﬂimti%

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—tF
HK$’000
TAT

HK$’000
FER

Net proceeds from issue of shares BT S M) TS FI8 558

on placement 39,640 39,030
Repayment of other loan BEHMER - (10,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon R T{EREARAE T 21 TAZ (D

exercise on share options B FT 1S RIE - 56,105
Capital injection from non-controlling  FEIZEAHEZE H &

interests = 667
Interest paid on other loan EMEREAFE (3,000) (1,806)
Net cash generated from METHELRESFEH

financing activities 36,640 83,996
Net increase in cash and RERBLEEYWRER

cash equivalents 4,302 8,134
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEF| BB 2 LB

changes (132) 172
Cash and cash equivalents FNNEERRELZEEY

at beginning of the year 35,003 26,697
Cash and cash equivalents DERITRIREEERET

at end of reporting period, RBEHRZRE

Represented by bank and RRSEEY

cash balances 39,173 35,003
Analysis of cash and RERREEEYZ DT

cash equivalents
Bank and cash balances RITMIRT TR 39,169 35,003
Bank and cash balances AP BEARHELRE

included in disposal group ZHEEEZRIT

classified as held for sale MERTTHE R 4 -

39,173 35,003
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED

=R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Flame Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 April 2014
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Suite 3513, 35th Floor, Tower 6, the Gateway,
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investments at fair value through profit or
loss which is carried at its fair values. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

3.

EFEETEE (H)

EBEHREE (H)

BESGFETRENARE LS
LR BR R ] RERL(E RS RIS SR s 1T
RERIR o BB TYIRRAR RETRERE
1BFTE - ERERRZTEAET
NEABRAM e Bt EEZFET
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Foreign currency translation ERRE
(i)  Functional and presentation currency () IhEERZ5IEYE
ltems included in the financial statements of each of AEBEREBUBHREAMBIE

the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i)  Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

3.

EFEETEE (H)

ME - WE MR EBIIAKRNRRETE
KR ERREARR °

HERARBREEZEERBHARRE
BB R ERANEE - MZHEB R
FXZRER] SERTERF - 1 BIRAETR B MiR
EESER RSB EE (RER) ° F
B E M8 AR R ANEE £ B
BAR B AR -

W¥ - BERREOTERDEH TR
RERER AR LS BERBEE
HE o EBERMT

- Plant and machinery : 25% - BB KES : 25%
- Furniture and fixtures 1 20% - BEREEE 1 20%
—~  Motor vehicles : 25% - RE : 25%
- Decoration : 20% - K 1 20%
- Office equipment : 20%-25% - WAREE 1 20% £ 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful
lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aNeRp R e B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
hydroponics products development is recognised only if all
of the following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes).

- It is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

—  The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 4 years. Where no internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first-
out method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Disposal group classified as held for sale

Disposal group are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the assets or disposal group are available for
immediate sale in their present condition. The Group must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of the assets’ or disposal group’s previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=1+—HLEE

EEEEEX ()

DERFEHFHEZLERE

DRSREFLEZMBREMRSLE
MEEE REETIREBHERSM
B RYE - R EHE S E
DRSFHEHE - ERNRA A EETTH
EMZEEL N ESBE R AR
& TERANEARIGN - AEEA
BOETTHE  BHERAERREH
HEit—FRRERER/D ERHE -

DERFERLEZMBREIREENL
FHENBEE 2 LR REERQFE
HBE(ER L ERAGTE -

BRRKILEISHTA

TRHEEREBRABENASEKSTA
BRNEHET K 77 R TSRO R B

oM

WEEEKRBRESRENE LENE
wm o AREEREEMBRNERTD
[ERe KRB ;SN BB RS R I MR
BEEMBAENBARDBY BB KEFRE
BREHEENTGIE B LLERS
MEE - RRILERSHEER - BE
FREEREERREET BN EEERIE
HNHER o

48R & KOET AR B (RS ~ BURZK
@ IR IR RAE - DRI
ROTRBEMNRAEEDSRENE
BN IR R o

Annual Report 2018 £ %

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost;
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss.

()  Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of
the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less loss allowance
for expected credit losses.

GLORY FLAME HOLDINGS LIMITED EiEiERERAHE

3.

EEETEE (H)

TREE

HREE KRBT ISP OERNREA
RNZBEENANBEXLERE
AEHERMEESRR 7 AEERAK
RILHER - WP RN THEIMEE RS
RGRATER  MATEFABREZR
BRI - WIBIR A ER ABRZRE
BEREBIEZRXHHRA - BRI TE

=7
At ©

AEERKEBEEDBSUATER

- REEKATEZEBMEE

-  BEAVERABmZIERE -

() ZREBERITEZEHEE
& TIMARFNEREE (8
RE S REMERIR) DEZI
Rl -

- BEDNRBNRKEEEN
WA MR e RENFEHE
ABFH R

- BEANBFREEBHE
EReRE FHBRIRE
ERAERRAEEAREZ
B o

A BTE B 1 LB B ok
R AR EERIEEBES BB
BB -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if
they do not meet the conditions to be measured at
amortised cost and the conditions of debt investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income
unless the Group designates an equity investment that
is not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss are net of any interest income and
dividend income. Interest income and dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(Continued)

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time
if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iy is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(B) (Continued)

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vl A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of productions processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible
assets except goodwill, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(@ Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference
to the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected or
there are unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future estimate
cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

Recoverability of internally-generated intangible
asset

During the year, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its internally-generated intangible
asset arising from the Group’s LED Cultivation Cabinet
business, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2018
at HK$2,940,000, before the impairment. The Group
carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets as a result of the deterioration of the
markets of the Group’s products. These assets are
used in the Group’s trading business segment. The
review led to the recognition of an impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,940,000 for internally generated
technology for the trading of LED Cultivation Cabinet
that have been recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aNeRp R e B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk
The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited

because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise credit risk,
the Directors review the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
receivable. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (if available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower; and

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. All of the
Group’s financial liabilities are due within one year.

(d) Interest rate risk
As the Group’s other loan bear interests at fixed
interest rates, therefore the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of change in
market interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MEBRRERE (&)
(Continued)
(€) Fair values (e) RFlE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REEMBRARFIREAEE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated ZemEERCRBGECREAE
statement of financial position approximate their MEERXACATERS -

respective fair values.

() Categories of financial instruments at 31 December O RIZA=F—HZZHTAK
Vil
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&TT
Financial assets: ERMEE :
Financial assets at amortised cost RN ER
(including cash and cash equivalents) SREE (BIEERS 95,401 126,682
MIREEEY)
Investments at fair value through BRAFEFAEBRZ
profit or loss: wE -
Mandatorily measured SEHIMEET = - 51,030
95,401 177,712
Financial liabilities: SHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RN ER
SEAE :
Trade and other payables 25 N EMENFIE 17,064 13,266
Other loan HEMER 40,000 40,000
57,064 53,266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre MR mR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy
at 31 December:

ATEIE

NHERTS2EENGFERRERF
RHPHEEEMRBNERKEZRER
B EER - W TR THEERE
ERz A HEEBR - #SfhERMT R
ABED B=EFE - Ut EAFE

F—RBARE - AEENFTERHA
REHEREEXBERARTISRE
(RAEFRE) -

E-RHAE  AERABRTEER
MERRZBARE  F-REEZH
B -

FMBARE - BESRBEZTAE
R -

AEE 2 BRBERBENFENKMNN
BEEHZEL 2 A IEZE = AFH
ZEEARES -

(@) Rt=—A=+—B2ZAF¥ERE
R

Fair value measurements using: Total

FRATHASE A TEE B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017

E—1 E-m F=H —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TEL THEL AL

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Investments at fair value through BAVE ABRZ
profit or loss wE
Listed securities in Hong Kong REE L TRE S 51,030 - - 51,030

ok

Total recurring fair value measurements &8 M A F(EFT =88 51,030 - - 51,030
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy
at 31 December: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were
no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

7. REVENUE 7.

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

DNVERE (&)

(a) RT=A=t—HZAFERE
RWE: (&)
HE-T—\Ft-A=+-~8
LFE - B REE-RZEY
e MEAE=ABARS
H(ZF—t5F: 8) - AKEZ
B S A 1 B AR 3 3R 85 B B
RERRAFEEERN 84 -

N
REE Z WAL

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Provision of concrete demolition and AR R IRE &
construction engineering services T ERTE 83,803 71,835
Trading of LED light sources for decoration BB AREMALED IR - 85,462
Manufacturing and trading of prestressed RENEESRE
high strength concrete piles and provision of  FEfE SRR+ &5
prefabricated precast construction MR RA A TERIEEE 4,510 8,581
Trading of LED Cultivation Cabinet BEEDEETEEE 878 9,110
Trading of clean coal, mixed coal and others B &2 - JE&)
NEAM 43,887 8,057
Provision of insurance brokerage and BRI
consultancy services R 553 238
133,631 183,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. WA (#&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: AEEZBFPEAWRASHTAT -
Segments 2018 7 &R —E-N\F

Agricultural Trading  Financial
Construction  equipment  business services Total

BE  RERE  HARE SRR st
HK$000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000
FiEn TRR TR FER TR

Timing of revenue recognition RS2 A K
Ata point in time E-BE% - 878 43,887 553 45,318
Over time FERER 88,313 - - - 88,313
88,313 878 43,887 553 133,631
Segments 2017 o EB —E—+F
Agricuttural Trading Financial
Construction ~ equipment business services Total
BE  RERB  Z5RB  2ERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL TAL TAL TAL
Timing of revenue recognition el N =T
Atapointin time E-BHY 8,581 9,110 93,519 238 111,448
Over time RS 71,835 - - - 71,83
80,416 9,10 93,519 238 183,283
Construction service fee income EERBEEKRA
The Group provides construction service to the customers. AEERFFPRERERT - ERES
When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the ABRVNEBEATHKNERAIKESIEGE
performance obligations of a construction contract can - BHRAREOKATERTIE
be measured reasonably, revenue from the contract and DR E LS EENE KA EER
the contract costs are recognised using the percentage ZARETRE KA E © 3% AR5 H
of completion method, measured by reference to the STLA DA /G ©

percentage of contract costs incurred to date to the
estimated total contract costs for the contract. This method
provides the most reliable estimate of the percentage of
completion.
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REVENUE (Continued)

Construction service fee income (Continued)

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a construction contract cannot
be measured reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is expected to be
recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group
according to the payment schedules as stipulated in the
contracts. If the service rendered by the Group exceeds
the payments, a contract asset is recognised. If the
payments exceed the service rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling prices
of the performance obligations. The stand-alone selling
prices are determined by applying the expected cost plus a
margin approach.

Trading

The Group sells LED light sources for decoration,
prestressed high strength concrete piles, LED Cultivation
Cabinet, clean coal, mixed coal and others to the customers
through its trading business. Sales are recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the
products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of
45 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on delivery
may be required. Deposits received are recognised as a
contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
to the customers as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=1+—HLEE

WA (&)

BEBRBERA (H)

ERESHBHETTANERTAIH
BIEFER - RIERRAERA K E 2
BEELAHRANKEA -

BEPIRIBEA HR] AN RIS R A A S
B A RER o WMAREMEHAR
BEENR - HEEREHNEE © M
FBHATRRHARE - AeRRAA0A

f& e

BHRERRBHEENERBLEED
REBNEME - BYEEERTELRK
ARINFETTEEE °

B5

AEEBEAEESEBREFHERAR
KHE LED R - SR ETAR SR
+TEHE  LEDRBREERS - BN R
BRNEM - SHEREmMIZFIED E
B(MERCRXNTEP) - LEATHE
FEREFPEMEMNABTEILRER
BUSEEmAVETE RERTER

AEPHHEE—RERISEEEY-
#E PSR MZE SN R E s A
BeMR ERDRZREERBBANE

EEMXNTEFE LB —ZFH

% APABIRMREIRE (BIES AT
R FRIERSN) - (& A RERRFEULRIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre MR mR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. HWAREBZHFHE

LOSSES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Bank interest income RITH EMA 7 2
Dividend income P& B g A 322 -
Reversal of impairment losses on trade BEIE 5 & H A EUGIE
and other receivables ZREEE 93 28,034
Exchange gain/(loss) bE H e, (E518) 70 (154)
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEME - BEK&E
plant and equipment (B518) s (193) 30
Others Hih 303 749
602 28,661
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. oEEHR
The Group has four reportable segments as follows: REEMUARA]Z2HAFLOT -
Construction Provision of concrete demolition BEE IREOREE T IFED -
and construction engineering BRETERE -
services, prestressed =R ETEIE R
high strength concrete piles; RTER -
construction works, and BETRER
prefabricated precast RS
construction
Agricultural equipment  Trading of Ecological LED REHE BEIRRLED £ 5&
Cultivation Cabinet System EVEL S
Trading business Trading of LED light sources for BH5HEK BB AR LED
decoration, clean coal, mixed KIRERE
coal and others RE B R EAM
Financial services Provision of insurance brokerage B RLARTS R &
and consultancy services B EARTS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as those described in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. Segment profits or
losses do not include interest income, income tax, gains or
losses from investments and other unallocated corporate
income and expenses. Segment assets do not include bank
and cash balance, investments at fair value through profit
or loss, disposal group classified as held for sale and other
unallocated corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not
include other loan, liabilities directly associated with disposal
group classified as held for sale, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated corporate liabilities.

Upon the termination of provision of prestressed high
strength concrete piles business in the PRC, no revenue had
been generated during the year of 2018 and was disposed
of during the year ended 31 December 2018. And it was
reclassified to disposal group classified as held for sale from
segment assets and liabilites.

9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRE ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=1+—HLEE

7 HRPER (&)

REEZ AT 2% BIRETREmR &
IR7% 2 RIS RIS BN - WRBREBE
SRAN[R) B ffly Ko i 355 HE JR SR g T B2 08 B
o

A 2HMEED AN ST BORES A M
BRI AT ER - 2 BB A
BRI TEBEMBMA - FEHR - KA
WA S BB N B A R D B A B K 5
X NHEEYTBRERITRRESAE
g RAHEFABRZZRE 28R
FEfRfr B 2 B S B A M EMmAR DA
RABE - PHEABYITEREME
R BRESBARESHEZNES
EEENEE BEEHBEAAELREMRK
DEAFEE -

FEHERENERETRE N RRLEE
¥BRIEE T )\FEVEES
WA HEREBEZE-_Z—/N\FE+_A8
=+—RAILEFEHE  YHHIBEER
BEEFIEEIEAREEENEE
£8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. Z#EH (&)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets RN EHHHERE BENBEZE
and liabilities: BT

Agricultural Trading  Financial
Construction  equipment  business services Total

BE  RERE  HARE SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TATL TAL TEL ThL ThT

Year ended 31 December 2018:  BZE-E-NF+-A=t-ALEE:
Revenue from external customers — RESMFZPHIMA 88,313 878 133,631
Segment loss HHER (5987)  (56,955) (115,161)
Depreciation of property, g BELETE

plant and equipment 3,457 4,093 7,550
Amortisation of intangible assets BBV EE - 1,470 1,470
Impairment loss on BARUGUEZRESE B8

trade receivables, net 1,002 - 46,672
Impairment loss on prepayments BNZERZERAHERE

and trade deposits 9,850 40,718 50,568
Impairment loss on property, nE - BERREAESE

plant and equipment - 4,122 4,122
Impairment loss on intangble assets ~ &F EEREER - 2,940 2,940
Additions to segment REDDERDEE

non-current assets 3,183 171 8,455
At 31 December 2018: RZB-NE+ZB=+-H:
Segment assets NEEE 48,141 3,099 78,385
Segment liabilties HHaE 7,223 112 12,116
Year ended 31 December 2017:  BZ-E—-+F+-fA=+-HILEE:
Revenue from external customers —— RESMNSEPEIRA 80,416 9,10 183,283
Segment profit/loss) AN/ (B8) 2565 (19,757) 5070
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRENE

plant and equipment 4,862 47 6,328
Amortisation of intangiole assets iRy EE - 1470 1470
Impairment loss on BIRYE RERSE 78

trade receivables, net 84 - 84
Fair value gain on contingent FRREATERA

consideration (21,889 - (21,889
Impairment loss on goodwil HEGEER 21910 - 21910
Addltions to segment RENPERDEE

non-current assets 1,277 2,962 4,324
At 31 December 2017: R=B-t§+ZB=t-H:
Segment assets PHEE 77725 52,106 196,810
Segment liabilties NEEE 7,898 157 10,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEER (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets AIEHoEiEn BERBEZHE ¢
and liabilities:
2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
Profit or loss: B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments B R bt (115,161) 5,070
Share-based payments VARR 19 B EAE 7 55k (20,798) (19,080)
(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value BAFEFGTAEB® S
through profit or loss wE (B8 s (35,651) 51,372
Corporate and unallocated profit or loss RNEIRADRER (27,807) (20,514)
Consolidated profit or loss before tax BEiRI4r & i85 (199,417) 16,848
Assets: BE .
Total assets of reportable segments AI2ROEBEELT 78,385 196,810
Bank and cash balances SRIT IR G A6k 39,169 35,003
Investments at fair value through profit or loss ~ ZA T EEF ABRZIHE - 51,030
Disposal group classified as held for sale DEAFIEFREZ
iSRS 31,128 -
Corporate and unallocated assets RAIRADEREE 12,796 12,684
Consolidated total assets IREBEBRE 161,478 295,527
Liabilities =L
Total liabilites of reportable segments AIE2HHEaERE 12,116 10,742
Other loan HhER 40,000 40,000
Liabilities directly associated with BEEASBEABIESHE
disposal group classified as held for sale ZHBEEEENARE 13 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAE 33 915
Corporate and unallocated liabilities NARIEDEEE 5,180 2,524
Consolidated total liabilities IRABEERE 57,342 54,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEER (&)
Geographical information: & M EH
2018 2017
—E-N\E e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FA&T
Revenue: gz
Hong Kong E 84,285 148,871
The People’s Republic of China R AR 49,346 25,747
The United States ESJE - 8,665
133,631 183,283
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based REREEERME - WATIREP
on the locations of the customers. Eofiva===2]IKd
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Hong Kong &5 8,474 15,138
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) EE A RARE
(T&E] ) 10,932 41,249

19,406 56,387
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10.

11.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) <l

Information about revenue from the Group’s customer
individually contributing over 10% of total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

Trading business segment BEREBDE
Customer A# =ZPA"
Customer B* BPB
Customer C* XPFCr

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

7 HRPER ()

KE R SR EEBKATE 10% A
tERZEFERIT -

2018 2017
—EBE-)N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TAET

20,857 8,665
4,802 39,542
4,463 37,255

# Customer A did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017, the figure
shown was for comparative purpose only.

Customer B and Customer C did not contribute over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the figure shown was for comparative purpose only.

g EPARBE-_ZE—+tF+=-A
=t+—HIEFETVEAEEBBRAL
K10% A L BB/ - B RS T ERL

* EFBREFCREBEZE=-Z—N\F
T A=t —HIFEWEASEE
WATER10% A EERL - FTEEET
EHEEEER -

FINANCE COSTS 10. BE WA
2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Interest on other loan HEERF B 3,000 2,006
|
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 1. BB AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

On 1 June 2018, the Group and the independent third party
entered into the Capital Increase Agreement to acquire
61% of the registered capital of Huizhou Precast Building
Materials Co., Limited (the “Huizhou Precast”) for a cash
consideration of HK$9,000,000.

BE—_F-\F+-A=t—AL
FE

R-ZZE—N\FXA—AB AEBEHE—F
BUE=FRIIEE R - ARRER
18 9,000,000 7 7T Uk B8 S & B R F2 56
MEER AR ([EMEEE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 1. WEEKHIE AR ()
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2-_F-N\FE+=-A=+—HL
(Continued) FE (&)

The principal activities of Huizhou Precast are engaged FINE RN £ ZEN S RE R R
in the business of production, research and development T EREATE YR RE 4 40 1 IR IR Om A e 18 o
of prefabricated precast concrete components and glass SRR TN EMTEIEEMNER -
fiber reinforced cement components, product installation

guidance.

PAUEE B B W BB B E 3 R A AT s
BERAEZRFENT

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Huizhou Precast acquired as at its date of acquisition is as
follows:

HK$’000
THET

Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 3,672
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A ERGRIE 10,474
Inventories FE 2,959
Bank and cash balances IRTT IR © 58k 590
Tax receivable JEULFR IE 253
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERRIE (4,733)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value LARFEET A58 ELRF58 13,215
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (5,153)
Goodwill RS 938
Consideration transferred B E R 9,000
Satisfied by: PAAT AR -

Cash R 9,000

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRANEINERERE KRS EED
respect of acquisition of Huizhou Precast: TEFEEE 2 DA

HK$’000
TAT

Total cash consideration @IS HRE 9,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WS e R e EEY (590)
8,410
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Huizhou Precast contributed revenue of approximately
HK$4,510,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit of
approximately HK$80,000 to the Group’s results for the year
between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting
year.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2018, total Group’s revenue for the year would be
HK$140,553,000, and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$200,461,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

On 6 November 2017, the Group acquired 60% of the
issued share capital of Hong Kong Yuanfeng Insurance
Brokers Limited (the “Yuanfeng”) for a cash consideration
of HK$2,040,000.

The principal activities of Yuanfeng are provision of
consultancy and insurance brokerage service.

11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=1+—HLEE

W BRI~ = (4)

BE-Z—-N\H+=-A=+—HL
FE (&)

R R BEREFERGM BT
¥ B A 7R & B 75 3K 49 4,510,000 7 7T HY
W A #780,000 55 TTHIUE A ©

WEEBEERA_-_ZT—N\NFE—F—H
TN ASBFANRUBAB AR
140,553,000/ ¢ * M EREIEEL A
200,461,000/ 7T - BEHEZ ERHEE
S WIEEAMBEBEER=ZZ—N
F-—A—AZTK  ~EBERERERZ
WARKESEEZIBE - NEEIERY
RIRZELE 2 FEA -

E-F-tFt+=-H=+—H
RZF—tF+—ARA 25BN
BEELERRELERLDA (T
B)) DBETEA0% REKRER
2,040,000 7T °

TTERNEBXBRREMEA A RRRERL
ARTS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 1. WEEHE AR (&)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE-F—t&+=-H=t+—H
(Continued) (%&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEEE TEHRARENEERBEZ
Yuanfeng acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: NFEET

HK$’'000

FAT

Bank and cash balances RTINS AR 160

Deposits and prepayment e KA FRIE 83

Other payables HAFER IR (74)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value AT EF AT BRI E ERFEE 169

Non-controlling interests FEVE R A (68)

Goodwill eSS 1,939

Consideration transferred REER 2,040

Satisfied by: LAAT AR -

Cash [e 2,040
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in AETEReRBeSEYRLF
respect of acquisition of Yuanfeng: 2D

HK$’000

FAET

Total cash consideration BmIeRE 2,040
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEEFISRIRE MRS EEY (160)

1,880
Yuanfeng contributed revenue of approximately HK$237,000 KU BB EREFEREHE - TER
to the Group’s revenue and loss of approximately AN B %5 R 49 237,000 AITHIURA KL

HK$200,000 to the Group’s resullts for the year between the 200,000 A THIE1E o

date of acquisition and the end of the reporting year.
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2017, total Group’s revenue for the year would be
HK$184,659,000, and profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$15,016,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

12. INCOME TAX

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

1. WBKHEA R (8)

BEZ-_Z—tF+=-A=+—H
(#8&)
WKEEER =T —+F—H—8
TSR AKREFANLKAEB A
184,659,000/ 7T + i F P48 % FI i 49
#15,016,0008 7T - BEEAHEEERHE
e - WIERAMBBEENR-Z
—tF—A—H%EK ' AEBEERE
W2 WARGCEELE 2 1BIT - IMEELE
BEIRIRELE 2 TEA -

12. FiB%H

2018 2017
A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax: BIEAFRIE — BB RIS
Provision for the year FNEE 1,049 941
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHERE (27) (19
1,022 922
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BIEAFRIE — AR
Income Tax: ERGR
Provision for the year FNEHE 24 17
Deferred tax (Note 27) EERIE (MEE27) (882) 7
Income tax expense FTSRiA X 164 1,016

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
based on the assessable profit for the year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

RIBEFARRBOEN IR E16.5% (=
T—+F : 16.5%) FHREENEH

HtpBIR 2 EART G N 2 HMIAB AR

AEBEBAERR 2 RITHERKE
BT 250 BENEHIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/expense
and (loss)/profit before tax is as follows:

12. FriS# ()

FAMSH (ER) /Fx G5BT
(B8) afz 8RR T

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(Loss)/profit before tax BREA (BB) RF (199,417) 16,848
Tax at domestic income tax rate of BAM ST E16.5%E
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—+F :16.5%) (32,904) 2,780
Tax effect of income is not taxable BEMBBA 2 BT E (66) (10,272)
Tax effect of expenses are not deductible PR 2 B2 27,555 6,481
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBBEB BB E 7,101 1,955
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABERCHER A
not previously recognised BiE BB E (20) (39)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREHEER Y
not recognised M2 311) 848
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MBAR AR R 2 (1,164) (722)
Over-provision in prior years BEFTEBERE 27) (19)
Income tax expense Friefif = 164 1,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. &R (BE) &R
The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/ AEEBFER (BBR) =80k
(crediting) the following: (Bt A) TOBIEZE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Cost of inventories sold/services provided HEEFE MEHERIGHK A 105,088 154,632
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1Z « W= L EEITE 8,652 6,618
Amortisation of intangible assets BINETAE 1,470 1,470
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment REEES (A 193 (30)
Written off of property, plant and equipment M - R LRGN 835 3,432
Impairment losses on various assets BEREERRERIE
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 46,672 84
Prepayments and trade deposits BENRIEBERZ RS 50,568 -
Property, plant and equipment e ] 4,122 -
Intangible assets BmAE 2,940 -
Goodwill EES - 21,910
104,302 21,994
Fair value gain on contingent consideration SAREBE 2 AT EKE — (21,889)
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA (BRES
remuneration — note 14) i - BIsE14)
Salaries, bonus and allowances e~ TEALNOERL 34,302 30,497
Share-based payments LARR(D BERE A 5K 18,921 17,520
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRREFFHEIH R 610 613
53,833 48,630
Share-based payments to consultant [ R 8 S A5 ARG )
H e x 1,877 1,560
Operating lease rentals in respect WMREMEZ
of office premises wEHNEE 8,780 6,886
Auditor’s remuneration R B A = 880 830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EEREEAREHMAL
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE_Z—)\F+ZA=T—HIEFE
31 December 2018 is set out below: BEEFHMEIBT ¢
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits ~ Share-based scheme
in kind payment contributions Total
e RE  JROAER Bfke
we  REWEF PAE ftshatal @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TEx TiEn TiEn
Executive Directors HiEZ
Ms. Che XiaoYan ERENL 1 - m 2,284 - 3,061
Mr. Man Wai Lun REBEE 2 - 345 2,284 13 2,642
Mr. Zhu Zhou .V i3 3 - 340 - - 340
Mr. Li Shun Min IR AA 4 - 223 2,084 - 2,507
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun ] e 5 - 159 - - 159
Ms. Jiao Fei ERTL - 120 2,284 - 2,404
Mr. Guan Jincheng iyt 6 - 74 2,284 - 2,358
Independent Non-executive Directors BV #5772 %
Mr, Liu Yang ABrE 7 36 - - - 36
Mr. Liu Yingjie ARGEE 8 34 - - - 34
Mr. Chan Kam Wah RRELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Bai Honghai ARELE 9 84 - - - 84
Mr. Li AnSheng SRERE 10 82 - - - 82
Mr. Chen YongQuan BEEL L 11 82 - - - 82
Mr. Lin Hong Tong WEBAE 12 8 - - - 8
516 2,038 11,420 13 13,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre M mR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTERESFMAL (F)
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended (E_F—+F+A=+—HLFE
31 December 2017 is set out below: BEZHMNEIT -
Selaries, Retirement
allowances henefits
and benefits ~ Share-based scheme
in kind payment  contributions
boRE DROAER il
REM PATES G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AL i T
Executive Directors HiEZ
Mr. Liu Zhong Ping B ik - 52 - - 525
Ms. Che Xiao Yan BEETT 1 - 1,200 1,650 - 2,850
Mr. Man Wai Lun XRE A 2 - 498 1,650 18 2,166
Ms. Jiao Fei ERGL - 194 630 15 839
Ms. Yang NiNa BRfRL - 201 630 9 840
Mr. Li Shun Min FIRR S 4 - 240 1650 - 15890
Mr, Guan Jin Cheng Bk 6 - 80 1,650 - 1730
Non-executive Directors FHEE
Mr. Zheng Si Rong LS 60 - - - 60
Mr. Wong Tik Tung TRRAE 60 - - - 60
Ms. Wu Chun Ping REEYLT - 38 1,650 - 1,688
Mr. Lin Hong Tong WEBEE 12 43 - - - 43

Independent Non-executive Directors B 34i/7E%

Mr. Bai Hong Hai B8R E 9 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Kam Wah 5kt 120 - - _ 190
Mr. Liu Ping R 23 - - - 23
Mr. Li An Sheng ERERE 10 - 80 - - 80
Mr. Shen Xing Xing NEERHE - 3 - - 3%
Mr. Chen Yong Quan REELE 11 43 - - - 43
Total for 2017 “E-tEE 469 3,004 9,510 42 13,115
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MG ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTEERESFMAL (F)

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no emoluments BHE_ZT—-/\F+-_A=+—HIEF
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to B AEBVERESZ(TERMME -
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of YERMAREE SR INERFH RS IE
office (2017: Nil). Neither the chief executive nor any of the REBEBEE (ZE—tF:8) - 5E
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments —E-N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE " #
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). H|EBITWABHRAMEZIHESXRE

BERDREMNHE (ZT—+F: &) -

Notes Bt

1 Resigned on 24 August 2018 1 RZZ—/\FENAZTMHBETE

2 Resigned on 19 September 2018 2 RZZE—N\FENATNBEHE

3  Appointed on 19 September 2018 3 RZZE—N\FENATNBEZE

4 Resigned on 13 August 2018 4  RZZFE-N\FNA+=HEFT

5  Appointed on 24 January 2018 and resigned on 19 5 RZE—N\F—AZTHBEEZE -
September 2018 IR =ZF—\FNATNBEE

6 Resigned on 13 August 2018 6 RZZE—N\FNAT=HEHE

7 Appointed on 13 September 2018 7 RZZF—-N\FNA+=BEZE

8  Appointed on 19 September 2018 8 RZZE—N\FENATNBEZE

9 Resigned on 13 September 2018 9 RIZE-N\FhLAT=HEF

10 Resigned on 6 September 2018 10 RZZE—N\FNAHEHTE

11 Resigned on 6 September 2018 11 RZZE—N\FNANHEMTE

12 Resigned on 24 August 2018 12 RZZE—N\FNAZ+HBEFT
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2017: three) individuals, both of them
falling within the band of HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(2017: one of them falling within the band of HK$1,000,001
to HK$1,500,000 and the other individuals falling within the
band of HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000), for the year, are
set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

14. EERTEBRSHMAL (&)

TEmREHFMAL

AEBFAREERTMALHR=E
(ZE—tF:WMB) BES - EHH
WERLEX - RAFE - EHBWE A
T (ZEBE—+F: =8) MBALH
il 7> < 2,500,001 7 7T Z 3,000,000 7
T(ZE—+F EF—ZFHHN T
1,000,001 7 7t & 1,500,0007% Jt & &
R BNF- 2,000,001 78 7T E 2,500,000
PBIT) ZEHBAT

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 5,164 352
Share-based payments LARRAD BEGRE 2 3k - 5,594
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORETEIH K 36 49
5,200 5,987

Save as disclosed above, for the two years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, no other emoluments had been
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

Br i EEIN BHEZT—\F R
TE—+F+-A=+—HIIRAEFE -
AEBHERAZRSHFMA LT IMNE
S 1B IAREB K INARERE R
R EERD o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIVIDEND 15. RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of an final EETEEMREBE_ZE—/\FE+=A
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil). S+ —HALEFEINRERE (ZF

—tFE)o

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. B (&8) &7
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER (FR) =7
The calculation of basic loss/earnings per share attributable RABIHE ARGEERER (BE)
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year w A TR AN N BB AR FEEE
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately #47194,804,0008 7L (ZFE—+4F : &
HK$194,804,000 (2017: profit for the year attributable to NAIHEA AL F W5 F 18,138,000
owners of the Company of approximately HK$18,138,000) BIL) RAFEE BT EBR 2 INE
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5 977,581,000/ (=& — £ 4F :
977,581,000 (2017: 831,008,000) in issue during the year. 831,008,000%) £+& -
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREE (FR) &7
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for HE_ZT-\Fk=F—+tF+=A
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. —+—HULEFENMBETE SRR

ZEEBREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre M mR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BERRE
Plant and Furniture Motor Office
machinery  and fixtures vehicles  Decoration  equipment Total
BERAH  HARKE i} B BAZRG gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T TEn TEn T T T
Cost A
At1 January 2017 RZE-tE-A-R 40459 1,661 9,687 7,96 607 60,370
Adations R 3,972 5 475 7,354 817 12,670
Disposal e - - (267) - - (267)
Written off i - - - (3,889 - (3,885
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+Zf=1-H
and 1 January 2018 kZE-)\E-F-H 44,431 1,113 9,8% 11,425 1,424 68,368
Addttions 1R 1,757 48 983 1,118 4725 8,631
Acquisition of a subsidiary YE-HHBAR 3,666 - 2 - 4 3672
Disposal hE (289) - (641) (332 (54) (1316)
Writen off 6 - (30) - (134 (1,187) (1,351)
Exchange differences EizZ (336) - 19) 46) (16) (411)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-H 49209 1731 10,226 12,031 4,89 78,113

Accumulated depreciation ~ ERFERFE
and impairment

At 1 January 2017 RZE-+5-7-H 30,324 1,634 7,675 3,960 109 43,702
Charge for the year ERTH 4,784 9 917 672 236 6,618
Disposal e - - (267) - - (267)
Write back on written-off EOif - - - (453) - (453)
Exchange differences EXER - - - 2 3 5
At 31 December 2017 RIE—+E+-F=1-H

and 1 January 2018 R=E-\5-A-H 35,108 1,643 8,325 4,181 348 49,605
Cherge for the year EREE 4261 19 911 2700 761 8,652
Disposal hE (63) - 80) (86) (17) (246)
Write back on written-off B - (7 - (36) (473) (516)
Impaiment loss AEEE 4122 - - - - 4122
Bxchange differences EizE 3 - - - (1) 33
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-F=1-H 43,3% 1,680 9,156 6,759 618 61,584
Net book value FETE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-F=1-A 5833 76 1,070 5212 4,218 16,529
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+-R 9,323 70 1,970 7,244 1,076 19,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BMERRE (8)

(Continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount HRAREERZTISER - WAKE
of its plant and machinery in 2018 as a result of the RZZ—N\FHEBE RIS 2 e
deterioration of the markets of the Group’s products. These SREETERN - RFBEENAREER
assets are used in the Group’s trading business segment. LEBSEBNDE - BAEMEHNER
The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss of TR R (B ET1E £ 4,122,000 7T © 1HE
approximately HK$4,122,000, that has been recognised EEZEM&@%EETJETJ@?U% ARIRAE
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the related meEx (F ANEEFE) frEHE
assets has been determined on the basis of their value in )ﬂ%ﬂﬁ?ﬁm ﬁﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁiﬁ—%ﬁm%

use using discounted cash flow methods (level 3 fair value
measurements). The discount rate used was 16%.

18. GOODWILL 18. E&
HK$’ 000
FAT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2017 EA_”—‘tﬁ—H—EI 52,665
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 11) REBEN B AR (HFE11) 1,939
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R_E—+F+-_A=1+—HBK
—E-NF—H— El 54,604
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 11) Py 5 Wi —fEME AT (MFE11) 938
Reclassified as disposal group classified as ’\*57%%1’?&%2&1%%.2
held for sale (note 24) o8 (Mi24) (52,665)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H 2,877
Accumulated impairment losses: RITEEESE !
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 P ti—ﬂ—El —F—tF
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+—RBEk=ZE—\F—H—H 21,910
Reclassified as disposal group classified as ’\*57%%1’?&%2&1%%.2
held for sale (note 24) BB (KH3E24) (21,910
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H -
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 2,877
At 31 December 2017 WZZE—+F+_HA=+—8 32,694
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying
amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

18. & (&)
VARG 24 65 S B I R BB 5

TR AaNZEREHNRTE
HET - BBENREESO RN :

2018 2017
—E-NF —FT—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FA&T
Prestressed high strength concrete piles TEE N =R R R T 15
(“CGU A") ( [REEHETRTA] ) - 30,755
Provision of insurance brokerage and MR &AL N B AR
consultancy service (“CGU B”) ( [RE&EEHERB] ) 1,939 1,939
Manufacturing and trading of prefabricated BUENEERMAER
precast costruction components (“CGU C”) Sy Y - Ja iz Ko
([ReEHERC] ) 938 -
2,877 32,694
CGUA REEHETA
The recoverable amounts of CGU A is determined by the REeELET Am—jqﬁz@%gﬁmﬁﬁﬂ
CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal. Reference to the TEBEEKRAET - ZIRMBE A
announcement dated 13 March 2018, the Group has —E-—NE=ZAT+=HBRE ' A&
entered into a disposal agreement (“Disposal Agreement”) Bl HEH=z ([HEHHE]) - UL

on disposal of 51% of the issued shares capital of Mansion
Point and its subsidiaries to an independent third party with
the consideration of HK$30,755,000 (“Disposal”). At 31
December 2017, before impairment testing, goodwill of
approximately HK$52,655,000 was allocated to CGU A.
Due to the Disposal, impairment losses on goodwill of CGU
A of approximately HK$21,910,000 has been recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2017. During the year of 2018,
CGU A was reclassified to disposal group held for sale (note
24).

& Mansion Point & £ [ & 2 &l /9 &2 3%
TRABI1% T —2BILE=F ' KRB
430,755,000/ 7T ([HEZE]) - ©
—T—+F+-_A=+—H " ®wETT
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ#’%&m%mm%ﬁZﬁ
EARETFHESENETA REE=
—tF+ZA=+— HJLEJ*E%E%
CEHETANEEZREBENAR
21,910,000 7C - R=Z—N\FR -
CEHETAENDEAFEHEZH
EEE (fzF24) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aNeRp R e B

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. E& ()

CGUB

The recoverable amounts of CGU B is determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for
the next five years with the residual period using the growth
rate of 5.0% (2017: 16.7%). This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s provision of insurance brokerage and consultancy
service activities is 16% (2017: 14%).

CGUC

The recoverable amounts of CGU C is determined on
the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-A=1+—HILEE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. B& ()
CGU C (Continued) RE&EHERC(E)
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the AEEEFRRAFESSBANEH
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for FHEEIRENR e RETEA - FIrE
the next five years with the residual period using the growth FRAERERL% - & LT EBEE
rate of 5%. This rate does not exceed the average long-term SN T HRAGRE -

growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the AEERENEERRNZEBRIRR
Group’s manufacturing and trading of prefabricated precast THENTEARSREITRER16% °

costruction components is 16%.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
Internally
generated
technology
AR
B
HK$’000
T
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZE—tF—A—H ZZ2—+tF
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 +—A=+—8 - ZFE—N\%F
—A—BE=E—)\F+ZH=1T—H 5,880
Accumulated amortisation and 2t EERREEE
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F—H—H  _T—+4F
and 1 January 2018 TZA=+—HBEZZ—-/\FE—HA—H 1470
Charge for the year FARAZH 1,470
Impairment loss B E 18 2,940
At 31 December 2018 W_E—N\Ft+_A=1+—H 5,880
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—NE+-_A=+—8 -
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H 4,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fre MR mR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. BELEE (&)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of HARASEERZTISER - WAEE
its intangible assets in 2018 as a result of the deterioration of RIZE-N\FHEEFEEZIKES
the markets of the Group’s products. These assets are used FHETERN REEETARAEEZ
in the Group’s trading business segment. The review led B5EBHE - BABEHEB N IBmE
to the recognition of an impairment loss of HK$2,940,000 RAAPRMZ LEDEEEERE S
for internally generated technology for the trading of LED B 18 2,940,0008 7 - HHEEEE 2
Cultivation Cabinet business that have been recognised in AR ESBEDRENARBESRE A
profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets (F=RATEFE) FTEEERAEE
of HK$2,940,000 has been determined on the basis of their BEE - FRZMBEER16% -

value in using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair
value measurements). The discount rate used was 16%.

20. INVENTORIES 20. &8
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Raw materials and consumables AR B R SR 5,047 2,687
Finished goods SBIRK i 1,001 -
6,048 2,687
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

B5 R HMERRKIE

2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B S EWERIE 78,776 79,560
Less: allowance for impairment of B B SR EIE
trade receivables BB (47,022) (428)
Trade receivables, net B SRR - F5E 31,754 79,132
Retention receivables 1RER FE R 3,398 4,634
Less: allowance for impairment of B RS JEJ%Z/TJ\IE
retention receivables BB (54) (75)
Retention receivables, net REB WA - F58 3,344 4,559
Prepayments and trade deposits ENRERL SIS 60,063 57,568
Less: allowance for impairment of B BNRIERR S
prepayments and trade ReBERE
deposits (note) (MF3E) (50,568) -
9,495 57,568
Other deposits and receivables EMize KRB GRIE 21,134 7,988
65,727 149,247
Note: BT

The amount mainly represents the impairment loss on prepayment
to suppliers in trading of Ecological LED Cultivation Cabinet System
business segment amounted to approximately HK$40,719,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, due to the unfavourable
performance of this business segment, the management was
unable to well utilize the prepayment for production of Ecological
LED Cultivation Cabinet System. The management is in progress
on negotiating with the supplier in order to agree the refund
arrangement, yet up to the end of reporting period, no formal
agreement have been signed between the Group and the supplier.
As advised by the Group’s legal adviser, the group may not be
able to collect the refund by supplier, hence, impairment losses of
approximately HK$40,719,000 have been recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

ZEATERRFIEDAREEEERGE
BoBRE ZEs R EETEN R EEIBL
40,719,000 7T« HE=—T—\F+= A
=T HIFE  ARZEBEITHNERRT
£ EEERERIMEBEERRLEDE
RETEEERFNTENRIE - E1RE FHEMtE
ﬁﬁ TR - LIBERRTH  BEEHRE
%%-$%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ2ﬁh%ﬂﬁmﬁ%
o WINAKEIAEERATERE - ASEA
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁEﬁW@@ﬁ it B#E=F
—\E+_A=+—BLLEE AEECHE
RREEIE#)40,719,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+-_A=1+—HILEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESRHEMEWFIE (&)
(Continued)
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days to its AEERTEPIEESR—MKAR45H -
trade customers. The following is ageing analysis of trade BIEEZEABPNE 5 ENETERNERR D
receivables based on invoice date is as follows: T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0 ~ 30 days 0-30H 8,054 23,720
31 ~ 60 days 31 -60H 4,650 16,572
61 ~ 90 days 61 -90H 2,384 2,907
91 ~ 365 days 91 - 365H 10,855 32,890
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,811 3,043
31,754 79,132
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: E S REWF RSB R AR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year £ 428 23,287
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREEREL N 46,672 84
Reversal of loss allowance for the year FREERHER (93) (22,876)
Exchange difference PE X 15 (67)
At the end of the year FR 47,022 428
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS REBEARBYBREERFEIGRIE
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime THB S ERMEE ZEKFIAER
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure TEHSEREHRT EEREEEISE
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been RETETEEEEEE - BSRIKIED
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the BEAZEERREHBRBHBHS
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate o BHEEEETESAREER -

forward looking information.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Over 30 days

Current past due

08 EHEAE%0A

REE60R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_T-\F+-A=t—HIFE

. BEZREMBEYWRE (8)

Over 60 days  Over90days Over 365 days

past due past due past due

RHEEOR MERe5H

At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+=B=1-H
Weighted average expected  IIETHEHERE

loss rate 3% 3%
Receivable amount (HK$000)  "[lE4%E (T TT) 12,539 2,250
Loss alowance (HK$000) & (F&7T) 318 67
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+5+-A=1-H
Weighted average expected T EHBIER

loss rate - -
Receivable amount (HK$'000) F[KE4%E (T#T) 40,291 10,366
Loss alowance (HK$'000)  F5iER% (T - -

22. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

4% 3% 89% 60%
1,765 10,262 51,960 18,776
m 3N 46,194 47,022

- - 13% 1%
17,136 8,347 3,420 79,560
- - 428 428

. BROVESFARZZRE

2018 2017
—EB-NE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Equity securities, at fair value REE LR ATE
Listed in Hong Kong ARREFE S — 51,030

|
23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$3,074,000 (2017: HK$1,127,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations.

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity period of three months or
less. Bank balance carried interest at market rates ranging
from 0.001% to 0.35% per annum (2017: 0.001% to 0.35%).

23. BITRBRSLEER

R-—ZE—NE+=-RA=+—H ' &&
BRTEREEHBAARBE -
#93,074,0008 7L ( = T — £ F
1,127,00087T) - AR HINEHE
SFHR B SN ) ik A5 o

RIEHR - RITRBESEHBRBSEAE
ERFENHRESUKRIBAA=@EA K
VAR 2 B2 ERSRTTIT 3K © $R1T74 ﬁ%hzmiﬁ
FEFF0.001%ZE035%( T —+
% :0.001% £0.35%) 518 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_T-\F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD  24.

FERBEGHEHEEE

FOR SALE

Reference to the announcement dated 13 March 2018, the
Group has entered into Disposal Agreement on disposal
of 51% of the issued shares capital of Mansion Point and
its subsidiaries to an independent third party with the
consideration of HK$30,755,000 (“Disposal”). The disposal
group is included in the Group’s trading business segment.

Reference to the announcement dated 13 July 2018 and 4
February 2019, the Group and the independent third party
had further entered into the first amendment agreement
and second amendment agreement, that the Disposal
completion date be amended to 31 December 2018 and 31
March 2019, respectively.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the
disposal group classified as held for sale at 31 December
2018 are as follows:

ZIRMAMAT - \F=A+=HH
NE AEBFTLEERRE - AKRE
30,755,000 % 7T H & Mansion Point
HIMBRARIEETRANE1% T —H
BYE=F (HESBHE] - kFHE
SEBASENEZFEEHE

ZIRMABMA-T—)/\FLtA+=HK
—E-NF_ANBMRE AEESH
BN E=HEE—FITUE MBI
ERE M HE - HESETK
HEESEI A —N\F+=A
=t+—HBER=_E-—hhF=ZA=+—H-

RIB—N\FE+-_A=+—HZTEX
ERAE (BRSERHEZHBES
) FERIESMT :

HK$’000
TAT

Goodwill EES 30,755
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M E B GRIA 369
Bank and cash balances IR1T IR © 58k 4
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIERNECHBEEBR 2 EE 31,128
Trade and other payables, and total for liabilities B NEMENFUE - RESEE

associated with disposal group classified as BREEGFHEZHBEE

held for sale BBz BERE (13)
Net assets of disposal group SFHESEEETE 31,115

At 31 December 2018, cumulative income or expense
attributable to owners of the Company recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to the disposal group
classified as held for sale amounted to approximately
HK$87,000.
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26.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ESRHMENRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Trade payables B SN IR 6,245 7,205
Accruals ezt &M 4,773 1,082
Other payables HAn R RIB 6,046 4,979
17,064 13,266
Note: MiEE -
Payment terms granted by suppliers are 30 days from the invoice HEFR THNZBREEBRRENEE
date of the relevant purchases. HHEARBET30H °
The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice B HRNFRIBEENEE B HNRER DT
date is as follows: PN
2018 2017
—E-NF —FT—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0 ~ 30 days 0-30H 3,738 4,674
31 ~ 60 days 31 -60H 79 85
Over 90 days TB3EB90H 2,428 2,446
6,245 7,205
OTHER LOAN 26. HEX
Other loan was an interest-bearing portion of ’r&ﬁ X #9 40,000,000 % 7T B qu B
HK$40,000,000 which was unsecured, interest bearing at R FRERTE%  WARR
7.5% per annum and repayable on 25 November 2019. :f NET—AZ+HBERER-
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

27. EERIBEERE
ERN - REEREAENEESHMNT :

Accelerated tax
depreciation

INEBIETE

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 838

Changed to profit or loss (Note 12) sTABERER (MFE12) 77
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZEBE—+tF+-A=+—HK

RZE—N\F—H—H 915

Credit to profit or loss (Note 12) RismExPHG (FFE12) (882)

At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=1T—H 33

At the end of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$32,370,000 (2017:
HK$24,011,000 available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Number of
ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
ZEREE R
HK$'000
TAT
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of BAREE0.01 T2
HK$0.07 each: BaK
As at 1 January 2017, RZE—+F—HA—H"
31 December 2017, —E—+F+-A=+—8"
1 January 2018 and “Z2-N\F-A—HK
31 December 2018 - )\F+-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZKRE
Ordinary shares of HREE0.01E T
HK$0.01 each: Bk
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HF—H 760,000,000 7,600
Issue of shares on placement LABCE 5 21T D (@) 80,898,000 809
Issue of shares upon exercise R AT AR i T 2T (D
of share options (b) 88,809,000 888
As at 31 December 2017 and RZF—tF+=HA=1+—8
1 January 2018 k=—F—-N\F—H—H 929,707,000 9,297
Issue of shares on placement R E A A BTG (© 80,898,000 809
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\EFE+=-A=1+—8H 1,010,605,000 10,106
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Completion of the share placement took place on
25 October 2017 pursuant to which 80,898,000 placement
shares were issued under the placement agreement at the
placement price of HK$0.5 per placing share at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$40,449,000, of which
approximately HK$809,000 was credited to share capital and
the remaining balance of approximately HK$38,221,000 (net
of issuing expenses of approximately HK$1,419,000) was
credited to share premium. Details of the placement were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 5 September
2017, 7 September 2017 and 27 September 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the subscription
rights attaching to 12,400,000, 26,200,000, 10,380,000 and
39,829,000, respectively, share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$0.83, HK$0.48, HK$0.8 and
HK$0.626, respectively per share (note 30), resulting in the
issue of 88,809,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of approximately HK$56,105,000. Also, approximately
HK$19,412,000 was transferred from share option reserve to
share premium. In result, HK$888,000 was credited to share
capital and HK$74,629,000 were credited to share premium
respectively.

Completion of the share placement took place on 30 May
2018 pursuant to which 80,898,000 placement shares were
issued under the placement agreement at the placement
price of HK$0.5 per placing share at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$40,449,000, of which
approximately HK$809,000 was credited to share capital
and the remaining balance of approximately HK$38,831,000
(net of issuing expenses of approximately HK$809,000) was
credited to share premium. Details of the placement were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 30 May 2018.
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28. A (48)

b

(@)

BOESEEER=ZFT—tF T+ A
Z+HRHAZTK - it - 80,898,000 A%
Ao B (0 2 BL & e LA B AR BEL 12 0.5
WL E 1T - R {E A £ 4740,449,000
AT & H49809,00078 T E 5t AR
N T8 E4938,221,0008 7T (F1F%
#91,419,000 B TR EBEITHZ &) 5T A
B E - BARE ZFIBEINNA
ARBEHA-ZE—tFEAARR =
E—+FEAALAR-ZE—+FHhA
—t+tBzRAE -

REBEEZT—+tF+=-A=+—H1t
FJZ + 12,400,0007 * 26,200,00017
10,380,00015 5 39,829,00017 & A%
ERNENREECDRIEREES
f%0.83%8 T« ®R0.48B L - B K
0.8/8 7T K Fh0.626 8 T171F (FisE
30) + B E 1T &A% 0.01 % T K RE S
88,809,000 fz EiBAR - WIS MRIEL
#%56,105,000 7T (FOBRFSZAT) bt
AN #919,412,000 7 T B o BB R AE ik
HEEEE RO RE - it - 888,000
7T & 74,629,00078 7T 5 BlET ARL A
KRR =B ©

BOREER=_ZE—\FRAA=1+H
SE AR 0 4 It - 80,898,000 I P & A%
MERBREEHEILESESREE
B 058 FIAZTT - BRREHA
40,449,0007% 7T * E R #7809,000 i
JoRT AR AN K #2838 4 38,831,000 /8 7T
(B EETTRI S 49809,000/8 7T) 5F A
R RERR - I EFENFBHRA
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2. AT BERRREFHEES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (a) BB RFT
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BERRE 4,251 11
Investments in subsidiaries KB RRZI&E 41,514 41,514
45,765 41,525
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 25 kEAMEWFIE 3,641 3,621
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG ] 48,640 196,956
Bank and cash balances RITRIR B M8 8,364 354
60,645 200,831
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NhEMEN A 1,751 1,510
1,751 1,510
Net current assets MmEEEFEE 58,894 199,321
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAEE 104,659 240,846
NET ASSETS BEE 104,659 240,846
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital f& A 10,106 9,297
Reserve (Note b) e (M3Eb) 94,553 231,549
Total equity R 104,659 240,846
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 29. AARIMBMRRRRFEEEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement (b) fEEEE
Share-based
Share payment Special ~ Accumulated
Premium reserve reserve losses
NRARER
ROGE  2(R&EE KRG 2RFH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT T T T
(Note ) (Note i)
i) (Kiti)
Balance asat 1 January 2017~ R=E-+E-f-AfLs 117272 11,287 30577 (56,533 102,603
Profit for the year KEERR - - - 16,428 16,428
Issue of shares on placement AEERABIRN 38,221 - - - 38,221
lssue of shares upon exercise BT RREMRTRG
of share options 74,629 (19.412) - - 55,217
Share-based payments P ATES - 19,080 - - 19,080
Lapse of share option BRERH - (248) - 248 -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 H=F—+E+-A=T—Ri&H 230,122 10,707 30,577 (39,857) 231,549
Balance asat1 January 2018  R=E-N\E-F- s 230,122 10,707 30,577 (39,857) 231,549
Loss for the year TERFR - - = (196,625) (196,625)
Issue of shares on placement INEERRETRD 38,831 - - - 38,831
Share-based payments W BER 2R - 20,798 - - 20,798
Cancellation of share options SHERE - (26,741) - 26,141 -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 H=F—\E+-A=T—RHEH 268,953 4,764 30,577 (209,741) 94,553

Notei: The share-based payment reserve represents the Miaki - DARRD R AR AR S
fair value of the actual or estimated number of 2 BR B 755 i 2% P 5 30 Bt LATE
unexercised share options granted to directors, 0 4 B DARR (9 A BT &9~
employees and a consultant of the Group HER MBI T BURFTRER
recognised in accordance with the accounting RYAEEEES EEKE
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based B ARTT R R AR B B R 3k
payments in note 30 to the financial statements. HETEE A F(E -

Note i Special reserve represents the difference between Mot : FRIRERERER=2Z—D
the fair value of the shares of Ultimate Expert FRHANBZEAMMKER
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation on 8 May FRRG 2 A TFEEARRTEH
2014 over the nominal value of the Company’s It RS EITIRD 2 EE
share issued in exchange therefore. LEERE o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents, legal and
financial advisers of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 2 August
2014 and refreshed on 2 June 2017 and 8 June 2018,
respectively, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=1+—HLEE

0. BRHETE

ARBIETERES ((ZE#)) 5
A& ER2EERHRRINER A NS
AEBEBRILEE - REB2EER
BARRRARARIHBEARNES (2
BN  fTHRAE AR - &
= XBER - RE - ZENMBE
Mo ZAA8N—T—mNFENAZRALE
BEARIR_TE—EFRNA_BR=F
—N\FRNANBEH  RIFEXBEHEX
E7] - BRIBZBERETFRDARBR -

RIEZAE - WA 2 M ARTTER
PR E &% A SR HETTERER
NENERERZ EBITRNZ10% ° I
EA+—EAMER - RIEZAS B
BERZ2RERFTNBIERN THEITH
Bir&EHE - EARERAARNRFE
FITRME0.1% [R o EMERIMNEH
TRBL R BREAERRAS L&
PR

BTARAIES  (THBHIEERR
IR EE B A LT 2 B EASEL
FERITEEE LA - 1IN - BEM
+ @A HRA - EARAREEERK
REBYIEMITES - HEEABEA
B TR EFERE - BBRAQ AR
MM H01% S RE (RIEAQARN
FH BH ZRH%EE) i@ 5,000,000
BT AR ARG FELERRIE -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BBRAESTE (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
7 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commmences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. fEAR#ERT & (4)
AN RARIEE T NFEA R P RIS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following tables disclose the movements in the

Company’s number of share options during the years: ENE
2018 —E-N\F
Lapsed/
Qutstanding at Granted Exercised cancelled  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
018 the year the year the year 218 Grantdate  Vesting period Exercisable period price
#-%-1%
ERRN/ toA=t-R
ERRY ERfife i MK REAH 1 EL i
Directors
]
McluZhongPng 20164 6.200000 - - - 6200000 14une2016  14Jung 201616 Jung 2016 16Jung 2016 -14 June 2026 HS083
Yrlzs EE ERERRTTA Z5ERRTEA 083%7
nATEE EZERERATEA ECRCERRTEA
M GuandnCheng 20178 8,089,800 - - (8.089.800) - 15wne 207 15.June 2017 - 16 June 2017 16.Jung 2017 - 16 June 2027 HkS083
ENRRE FHE ELERREA Z5ERETAA 06337
nATEE ECEtER AT ECECHERRTEA
MeMenWailn 20178 8,083,800 - - [3089.800) - 15T 15Jne2017- 16.Jne 2017 16.June 2017 - 15.June 2027 Hk$083
REBEE - TBE CET-HERAER Z5ERETAA 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ECECHERRTEA
M WuChunPng 20178 8,083,800 - - (8.089.800) - 15wne 207 15.June 2017 - 16 June 2017 16.Jung 2017 - 16 June 2017 HkS083
Tt - TBE CET-HERAER Z5ERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA EIE-HERRTAA
Ms. CheXaotn 2018 - 10,106,050 - - 10106050 19June 2018 19une 2018 - 20 June 2018 21 Jung 2018 - 20 Jung 2020 HKS083
BRENT FE EERRTAA “5-ErRAT-R 0637
MATAE EE-NERAZTH E Sy
M i Shunmin 218 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050 - 190wne 208 19une 2018-20 June 2018 21 Jung 2018 20 Jung 200 HKS0.63
HERR4 FE EERRTAA Z5-NERRzT-A 06337
MATAE EE-NERAZTH E Sy
M Guan Jncheng 2018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050 - 190wne 208 19une 2018-20 June 2018 21 Jung 2018 20 Jung 200 HkS083
ENRRE FE EERRTAA Z5-NERRzT-A 06337
MATAE EE-NERAZTH E Sy
MrMenWailn 2018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190ne2018  19June2018- 20 June 2018 21 June 2018 - 20 June 2020 Hk$083
YeRz4 ENE ZENEATA Z5-NERRzT-A 06387
MATAE EE-NERAZTH E Sy
M Jao e 18 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190ne2018  19June2018- 20 June 2018 21 June 2018 - 20 June 2020 Hk$083
ERt FE EERRTAA Z5-NERRzT-A 06337
MATAE EE-NERAZTH E Sy
Sub-otel 30,469,400 50,530,260 - [64,693,600) 16,306,060
it
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. iERfEsTE (])
2018 (Continued) —E-N\F(E)
Lapsed/
Qutstanding at Granted Exercised cancelled  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
018 the year the year the year N8 Grantdate  Vestingperiod Exercisable period price
2%-N% #-%-1%
-B-A ERRN/ toA=1-R
ik ERRY ERfif bl i REAH 1 EL i
Consultant N8 8000000 - - (8,000,000) - 15ne 207 15.June 2017 - 16 June 2017 16 June 2017 - 19 June 2027 HK3063
Bf FE 0 CEERREA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECERRTEA
Consutant 18 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190ne2018  19June2018- 20 June 2018 21 June 2018 - 20 June 2020 HK3063
B - FE 5 NERRHAA “E-ErAot-A 063ET
MR B-E-\ERA-TH EECEERACTR
(ther employee N8 5089800 - - (5,089,800 - 15ne 207 15.June 2017 - 16 June 2017 16 June 2017 - 19 Jung 2027 HK3063
L EE 0 CEUERAEA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECERRTEA
(ther employee N8 3709800 - - (3709.800) - 15ne 207 15.June 2017 - 16 June 2017 16 June 2017 - 19 Jung 2027 HK3063
L EE 0 CEUERAEA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECERRTEA
(ther employee 018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190wne 208 19June 201820 June 2018 21 Jung 201820 Jung 2020 HK3063
Et -/ “E-[ERATIA 5 NErAot-A 063ET
MR BoE-\ERA-TH EECEERACTR
(ther employee 018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190wne 208 19June 201820 June 2018 21 Jung 201820 Jung 2020 HK3063
Et N ENEREAA 5 NErAot-A 063ET
MR BoE-\ERA-TH EECEERACTR
(ther employee 018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190wne 208 19June 201820 June 2018 21 Jung 201820 Jung 2020 HK3063
Et N ENEREAA 5 NErAot-A 063ET
MR BoE-\ERA-TH EECEERACTR
(ther employee 018 - 10,106,050 - (10,106,050) - 190wne 208 19June 201820 June 2018 21 Jung 2018 20 Jung 2020 HK3063
Et N ENEREAA 5 NErAot-A 063ET
MR BoE-\ERA-TH EECEERACTA
Totdl 47260000 101,060,500 - (10340 16,306,050
&
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2017

Quistanding at Granted
1 Januay (uring
the year

Bxercied
during
e year

Lapsed/
canceled

during
the year

Qutstanding a
31 December
PAIE

30.

BREsrE (8|

Vesting perod

Exercisable perod

Bxercise
rice

0 R B i

Directors

| £

Ms.CreXeotan 20164 6,200,000 - (6,200,000) - - Mdne206 14June 2016- 16 June 2016 16Jung 2016 - 14 Jung 2026 HS083

L 5 CERERARA ZE-rErATER 08387
nATEE EZERERATEA ECEERATIE

McluZhongPng 20164 6.200000 - - - 6200000 14dne206  14Jung 2016- 15 June 2016 16Jung 2016 - 14 Jung 2026 HS083

BTkt 53 ZE3RERRYER ZE-rErATER 08387
nATEE EZERERATEA ECEERATIA

M Liu Ping 20164 620,000 - - (620,000 - ne2016 14June 2016- 15 June 2016 16.Jung 2016 - 14 Jung 2026 HeS083

Bkt EE CERERARA ZE-rErATER 08387
nATEE EZERERATEA ECEERATIA

Ms.Cre XeoYan 20178 - 8089800 (8,089,800) - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16ung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

BRENT B CECERTER E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtE AT ETERATER

M Li Shun Min 2178 - 8089800 (8,089,800) - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16ung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

BBk B CECERTER E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ECERATER

M Guan Jn Cheng 20178 - 8089800 - - 8089800 15207 15.Jung 2017- 16 June 2017 16Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

EfiEnt EtE E-YERRTEA E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ECERATER

M MenWailn 20178 - 8089800 - - 8089800 15Uume 2017 15June2017 - 16.June 2017 16 June 2017 - 15 June 2027 HiS063

bl i B CECERRTER E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ETERATER

s. Jao Fei 2178 - 3089800 (3,089,800) - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

Efnt B CECERRTER E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ETERATER

Ms.Yang Nina 2178 - 3089800 (3,089,800) - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

it EtE E-YERRTEA E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ETERATER

MeWuChnPg 20178 - 8089800 - - 8089800 15Uume207  15.Jung 2017- 16 June 2017 16Jung 2017 - 16 Jung 2027 HiS063

ATt B CECERRTER E-tEAAhE 06387
nATEE ECEtER AT ETERATER

Sub-otel 13020000 16628600 (28569.200) (620,000 30469400

it
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. iERfEsTE (])
2017 (Continued) —=—+F (B)

Lapsed/
Qutstanding a Granted Bercised canceled  Oustandng at
1 January during during duing 31 December Berise
the year the year the year 218 Vesting perod Exercisable perod rice

e AR EEEE it

Consultant 164 6200000 - (6,200,000] - - ne2016 14 2016- 15 June 2016 14 September 2016 - 13Jun 2026 HKS083

Bf FE E-RERRTTA Z5ENATER 08347
MATER  EE-RERRTRA ECEIERRTEA

Consutant AT - 8000000 - - 8000000 15Uume20t7  15June2017 - 16.June 2017 16 Jung 2017 - 16 June 2007 HkS083

Bf EE 0 CEUERAEA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECERRTEA

Otheremplojees 20168 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 - - DAugust2016 26 Auust 2016- 27 August 2016 26 November 2016- 26 August 2026 HKS0.48

L T S 31 o ZEET-RZTAA 04857
NBZtRE ZB-REMAZTLE 2T ENACTAA

(ther employee 168 6200000 - (6,200,000] - - August206  26August2016- 27 August 2016 27 Auqust 2016- 26 Auqust 2006 HKS0.48

L EE BENIhAE Z5EN\BZ A 04857
NBZtRE ZB-REMAZTLE 2T ENACTAA

(ther employee 2017A - 4380000 (£,380,000) - - 2IMach 2017 27 March 2017 - 28 March 2017 28 Merch 2017 - 27 March 2027 HkS0 80

L TEHE CELECHCHA F-tEATNA 080T
“hot+B EE-tESAIH)A RS

(ther employee 2017A - 6000000 (6,000,000) - - 2IMach 2017 27 March 2017 - 28 March 2017 28 Merch 2017 - 27 March 2027 HkS0 80

L TEHE CELECHCHA F-tEATNA 080T
“hot+B EE-tESAIH)A RS

(ther employee AT - 6,179,600 (6,179,600) - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16 Jung 2017 - 16 June 2007 HkS083

L EE 0 CEUERAEA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECERRTEA

(ther employee 2178 - 10,179,600 (5,089.800) - 5089800 15ume207  15Jung 2017- 16.June 2017 16 June 2017 - 16 June 2027 HkS083

L EE 0 CEUERAEA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECHERRTEA

Other employee AT - 620040 (6,200.400( - - 15dne0t7 15une 2017 - 16 Jung 2017 16 June 2017 - 16 June 2027 HkS083

L FE 0 CEERREA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECHERRTEA

Other employee AT - 370980 - - 3709800 15207 15.Jung 2017- 16 June 2017 16 June 2017 - 16 June 2027 HkS083

L FE 0 CEERREA ZEERETAA 06387
MATER  EE-HERRTAA ECECHERRTEA

Totd 45420000 91,278,000 (88.809,000) (620,000 41269000

i

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a FRRITEERET I IS LR A
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.75 years 375F (ZZF—+%F : 9.46%F) o

(2017: 9.46 years).
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial option
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RHLFE

30. fEAR#ERT & (4)

THIATER B e R 3
& o HRAZHABRBOT |

2018
S

Valuation date HEBE
Expected volatility TEHRR I8
Expected life LIRS

Risk free rate 8 [ B V) R
Expected dividend yield

Underlying stock price TERERRE

TRHARR BHRA K

19/6/2018
72.94%

2 years
2%
1.980%
0%
HK$0.62
0.627%8 7T

Valuation date HERE
Expected volatility TEERR IR
Expected life TEHAS W

Risk free rate
Expected dividend yield
Underlying stock price

A\ A R

HHRAA(E

Share options granted to consultant were incentives for
helping the Group to provide professional advice in relation
to the business and the operation of the Group. The fair
value of such benefit could not be estimated reliably and as
a result, the fair value is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

The Binomial Tree Option Pricing Model was developed
for use in estimating the fair value of traded options and
requires input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected life and stock price bolatility. Since the Company’s
share options have characteristics significantly different
from those of traded options, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimates, the Binomial Tree OPtions Pricing Model
does not necesarily provide a reliable measure of the fair
value of the share options.

TR B A K

2017/3/27 2017/6/15
52.18% 52.14%
10 years 10 years
104F 104F
1.714% 1.326%
0% 0%
HK$0.80 HK$0.62
0.80/87T 0.6287T

BT R OB YA R B A S R
EMARMER REENE LT A
{2 © BRI AT ERLT il
5 FUATESE MR OMEEA
FIEHE -

HIFT IR R R E R TR R G
ARG ATEEFTERERRE
BNRR - BRBEFRERERS o
RRARRHERENSBEZERS
HEAEATR - RERREZEER
RHNEBH AL EGBHBEEATE - ¥
“RAM T ERARLREHE
BB AFENRSEA
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31. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

On 7 July 2017, the Group further acquired 49% of the
issued share capital in a 51% of Success China Creation
Limited from the non-controlling shareholders at nil
consideration. The effect of the acquisiton on the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company is loss on
acquisition recognised directly in equity of approximately
HK$1,672,000.

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases a number of properties under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
between 1 and 3 years.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31. ¥BRERF

BE-ZE—tF+-A=+—HL
FE

RZZF—+tF+tA+tH ~EEE—F
MIEERBREASKEKEEES1%
) Success China Creation Limited £ 2%
TR ) 49% o WHEET AN BB AFE
G RER N RS B E R EER
#]1,672,00078 7T °

32. WEHERE

AEERBENAIRECEHE HREE
ZIEYE - ZFHERP—E=F -

1R A AT T SR TR
REMNTEENT -

2018 2017

—E—)\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER T

No later than one year DLW —F 8,567 8,499
Later than one year and no later than five years %R —F BT BB RE 11,398 13,642
19,965 22,141

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Other than as disclosed transaction and balance
elsewhere in notes 14 to the financial statements,
during the year, the Group had no other related party
transactions.

Compensation of key management personnel
The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are

also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 14.
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34. ARFXEMBLATRE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
AT BRBERRAN R E2MBAF

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the

end of the reporting period are as follow:

£

Percentage of
ownership interest/ Principal
Place of Issued and voting power activities and
incorporation  Paid-up capital Direct  Indirect place of operation
s,/
AL REEBDH FTEEKER
EEERER ERITRARKRE E# BE SRR
Ultimate Expert Holdings Limited BV USD2,000/ 100% - Investment holding
USD2,000
BAERERATF EEELES  2000E7T,/2,000ET REER
Leisure Peace Limited BVI USD1/USD1 100% - Investment holding
EBEABE XL 1ER REER
Drillcut Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000/ - 100% Provision of concrete
HK$5000000 demolition
ERIRERARA 0 5,000,000,/ RECER LIRS
5,000,000/ T
Forever Rise Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1/HK$1 - 100% Trading of LED
Products
RABRBBBDT B 18T/ 18T EELEDEM
AT ETRKEERRER PRC RMB20,000,000/ - 51%  Research and sales
BRAT RMB20,000,000 of LED Cultivation
Cabinet
hE AR #20,000,0007T,/ e RIHELEDEREE
AE#20,000,0007C L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

mERHENBRAT

mEEMENBRAF

Hong Kong Yuanfeng
Insurance Brokers Limited

BETERBELBRAR

SEZAMEERRER
BRAR

B
BRAT

Place of

incorporation

TR AR L B R
AEERER

PRC

PE

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

PE

PRC

hE

34. ARREEMBARRE ()

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power
Direct  Indirect
Fis s,/
REERDL
BRTRBERE B B3

Issued and
Paid-up capital

USD300,000/ - 51%
USD300,000

300,000%7T,/ - 51%
300,000% 7T

HK$3,050,000/ - 60%
HK$3,050,000

3,050,000 7T,/
3,050,000/ 7T

RMB500,000/ - 51%
RMB500,000

AR500,0007T,/ - 51%
AR#500,0007C

RMB43,000,000/ - 61%
RMB12,138,000

AR#43,000,0007T,/
AR112,138,0007T
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Principal
activities and
place of operation

FERBER
R

Manufacturing and
sales of prestressd
high strength
concrete piles

SERHERESN

BRE
BRTERE

Provision of insurance
brokerage and
consultancy services

REERBRELER
AR

Trading of clean coal

BERRAR

Manufacturing and
trading of
prefabricated precast
costruction
components

HERHEHGS
BT REEN
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. FEREREXRMETE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) MEITBHELEEZ2E
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in THERAREERFEAREEE
liabilities arising from financing activities during the EEBEZEE
year:
Other loan
Hih &R
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+%—H—H 50,000
Changes in cash flows Rensg (10,000)
At 31 December 2017 and RZEBE—+tF+-_A=+—HEK
1 January 2018 —E-NF—H—H 40,000
Changes in cash flows BerRE® -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—N\F+ZH=+—H 40,000
36. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 36. BB IBE®RE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and GEMBHREEERN _ZE—NEF=
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March A-t+hBiERERETE -
2019.
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

BB

AEERBEAEAVRFEZREREER
BEME (BREAER 2 RELEEYT
) M

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, is

as follows.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-0\§ ZTLF T F ZT0F ZTIF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
FET T FAL FAEL THEL
Revenue WA 133,631 183,283 128,964 90,260 89,392
Cost of sales HERAR (105,088)  (154,632)  (101,504) (59,627) (57,662)
Gross profit EF 28,543 28,651 27,460 30,633 31,730
Other income and net gains B IR A R \ 588 (35,049) 101,922 542 393 1,097
Administrative and TR EfEERY
other operating expenses 189,911 (111,719 (93,006) (17,055) (24,304)
Operating (loss)/profit 28 (B1B) /87 (196,417) 18,854 (65,004) 13,971 8,523
Finance costs BE R (3,000) (2,000) (1,998) (308) (335)
(Loss)/profit before income tax  BRFTERAT (B18) /%7 (199,417) 16,848 (67,002) 13,663 8,188
Income tax expense FraRiF S (164) (1,016) (2,241) (3,049) (3,366)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (BR) /&7 (199,581) 15,832 (69,243) 10,614 4,822
Attributable to: FEl
Owners of the Company AAREEA (194,804) 18,138 (68,092) 10,614 4,822
Non-controlling interests JEfRRR R (4,777) (2,3086) (1,151) - -
(199,581) 15,832 (69,243) 10,614 4,822
Asset and liabilities BENER
Total assets BEE 161,478 295,527 204,087 146,783 82,282
Total liabilities BaE (57,342) (54,181) (93,884) (65,190) (11,303)
Net assets BEFE 104,136 241,346 110,203 81,593 70,979
Attributable to: el
Owners of the Company AAREEA 104,197 242,266 111,188 81,593 70,979
Non-controlling interests IR ER (61) (920) (985) - -
104,136 241,346 110,203 81,593 70,979

R BREIL TERARE IS HmER N —#6 °

The financial summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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